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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Good morning.

          3  This meeting of the General Welfare Committee is

          4  called to order. Please turn off your cell phones or

          5  turn them on silent. Welcome, everyone.  First of

          6  all, I apologize for the delay, both on the Council

          7  side and the administration side.  We were all

          8  running late, so I'm sorry to those of you who have

          9  been waiting.  I want to welcome my colleagues Gale

         10  Brewer and Alan Gerson to this meeting.  Some of our

         11  other colleagues will be coming in and out as the

         12  session progresses.

         13                 Today we're looking at a number of

         14  pieces of legislation, four pieces of legislation,

         15  related to the Human Rights Commission.  I want to

         16  say at the outset I appreciate the presence of some

         17  of the leadership of the Human Rights Commission.

         18  We've had a very good working relationship and look

         19  forward to a dialogue today on this legislation.

         20                 The whole idea I think which unites

         21  all four pieces of legislation is to strengthen our

         22  current Human Rights Law and to make the enforcement

         23  of that law more viable.  I'll address each piece

         24  briefly in turn.  There are certainly differences of

         25  opinion on some of them, but I think the goal of
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          2  each piece of legislation is to strengthen our

          3  current law.  I think everyone here probably knows

          4  but just a moment of context, New York City has

          5  really been in the avant garde in terms of local

          6  Human Rights Law in the context of the United

          7  States.  1957, ground breaking fair housing law was

          8  enacted here, one of the first in the country, which

          9  then became a model nationwide.  1971, the first

         10  locale in the country to propose including sexual

         11  orientation in the list of protected categories.

         12  Just this year the first locale in the country to

         13  recognize other city's domestic partnership

         14  registrations.

         15                 And very timely, Chris Quinn, you

         16  walked in at a good moment.  Larry Seabrook,

         17  welcome.  What we're trying to do, obviously, is

         18  always ensure that New York City continues to look

         19  at the reality of our city and make our Human Rights

         20  Law even more effective.

         21                 We're going to hear from the

         22  administration in a moment.  They're going to speak

         23  to all four pieces of legislation up front in the

         24  interest of time and efficiency and my colleagues

         25  and I will be asking questions of the administration
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          2  on each other, although we're going to try and group

          3  the questions according to each piece of

          4  legislation.

          5                 Just to quickly review, Intro. 107A

          6  will be the first we'll look at, the Domestic

          7  Violence Non Discrimination Act, which provides

          8  crucial protections to domestic violence survivors,

          9  victims of sexual offenses and victims of stalking.

         10  As many of you know, these individuals are

         11  victimized twice in many cases, both from the actual

         12  crime done against them and then further as they

         13  work or as they look for housing or public

         14  accommodations they find a great not only

         15  insensitivity, but an absolute lack of accommodation

         16  which can actually make their situation even more

         17  dangerous.  We're trying to rectify that with Intro.

         18  107A.

         19                 David Yassky, who should be here in a

         20  moment, the prime sponsor of the bill, deserves a

         21  great deal of credit.  I also want to thank Tracy

         22  Boyland who's been a real leader on domestic

         23  violence issues in the Council as the Chair of the

         24  Women's Issues Committee.

         25                 I want to be very clear as we go
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          2  through this conversation on 107A there are plenty

          3  of employers and landlords in this city who are

          4  doing the right thing. There's by no means an effort

          5  here to stereotype but, on the other hand, if only

          6  one victim of domestic violence is not getting the

          7  appropriate accommodation, that's one person too

          8  many, and that's why I think we need a law to spell

          9  that out.

         10                 I will also note October is National

         11  Domestic Violence Awareness Month, so it's very

         12  appropriate that we are looking at this issue at

         13  this point.

         14                 I also want to thank Speaker Miller,

         15  who just a few days ago established Domestic

         16  Violence Housing Issues Task Force.  There's still

         17  so much to be done, as many of you know, to provide

         18  real housing opportunity, both short term and long

         19  term, for survivors of domestic violence.

         20                 We're then going to look at Intro.

         21  353, which would improve the enforcement of Human

         22  Rights Law in this city by ensuring that all New

         23  Yorkers have greater access to an understanding of

         24  their rights and that those rights are more

         25  prominently displayed throughout our city.  I want
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          2  to thank Alan Gerson for sponsoring this legislation

          3  and addressing what I think is a very important

          4  problem of people just not knowing enough about what

          5  their rights are.

          6            We're then going to hear Intro. 439, which

          7  I think you could say is a consumer friendly piece

          8  of legislation which seeks to make it easier for

          9  people to take advantage of the protections afforded

         10  by the Human Rights Law.  Gale Brewer, the lead

         11  sponsor of that legislation, I think has done

         12  something very important here by looking at how

         13  people are actually working with the Human Rights

         14  Law and trying to find a way to make it that much

         15  more usable.  Again, I think we have a huge problem-

         16  I've worked with the Human Rights Commission over

         17  the last 10 or 15 years- of people who could benefit

         18  from its good work but that needs to be facilitated.

         19    I think that's the goal of Council Member Brewer's

         20  legislation.

         21                 Finally, Intro. 417.  There's

         22  obviously some disagreement on this bill.  It's a

         23  bill introduced by the administration.  I think many

         24  of us could say we agree with the goal which is to

         25  ensure greater federal support and federal resources
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          2  for the work we do on human rights here in New York

          3  City, but I think there are real concerns about what

          4  I will say, to be respectful, are unintended

          5  consequences perhaps of this bill, particularly when

          6  it relates to people with disabilities.  I think

          7  this is a big concern that members of this committee

          8  want to discuss today and understand.  I also want

          9  to emphasize I think the administration, to their

         10  great credit, and the Human Rights Commission, to

         11  their great credit, has had listened to these

         12  concerns.  I think there's an ongoing dialogue.

         13  This is a first hearing on this bill.  There will

         14  certainly be further debate on this bill going

         15  forward so I don't think all issues are going to be

         16  settled today but I do think the very real concerns

         17  that have been expressed are being heard by the

         18  Council and the administration.  I look forward to

         19  further dialogue on that.

         20                 I just want to take a brief moment to

         21  let the sponsors of each bill say a few words.

         22  Since David Yassky is still coming in with his

         23  coffee, I'm going to turn first to Alan Gerson to

         24  say a few words about his bill.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you
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          2  very much, Mr. Chair.  I will say just a few words

          3  because I believe the bill speaks for itself.  I

          4  just want to first acknowledge and thank you, Mr.

          5  Chair, for your leadership in once again propelling

          6  our city forward in the ongoing quest to achieve

          7  human dignity and equal rights under the law for

          8  all.  I will have to leave before this hearing

          9  concludes.  I should note, though, I am here as a

         10  guest of the committee and I appreciate, Mr. Chair,

         11  your affording me this opportunity.

         12                 Just very briefly, Intro. 353 in many

         13  respects goes to the heart of the human rights quest

         14  which I noted because it bridges the gap, if you

         15  will, between theory and reality.  Obviously its

         16  Human Rights Law has been setting standards and

         17  criteria and goals and legislation are what drove us

         18  forward, but we need to be mindful of the

         19  practicalities of implementation.  Intro. 353 -- and

         20  I hope we will have administration support for this

         21  because Intro. 353 is something which all New

         22  Yorkers should be proud of because it promulgates

         23  and makes it clear to all New Yorkers and all who do

         24  business with us and all who visit us what our human

         25  rights standards are.  This will have a direct
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          2  impact on individuals by spreading the knowledge of

          3  their rights and by -- we all know that in too many

          4  instances the most vulnerable members, the ones who

          5  are most exploited are those who lack information.

          6  Information to cite the cliche is power.

          7                 This bill assures that every

          8  individual is empowered to act on and receive the

          9  benefit of the Human Rights Law which we have made

         10  available to all.  So if we mean what we say, and I

         11  believe we do mean what we say, we must take the

         12  necessary steps to assure that everyone receives the

         13  information they need to make human rights in this

         14  city not just a theory but even more of a reality

         15  than it currently is.

         16                 You will hear testimony, Mr. Chair,

         17  of individuals who will relate the problems and the

         18  exploitation which has in fact taken place due to

         19  ignorance and due to lack of information and

         20  knowledge.  By the way, this goes to both the

         21  victims and in certain cases the inadvertent

         22  perpetrators who may not be fully aware of the Human

         23  Rights Law in all of its respects.  This will

         24  correct that situation.

         25                 I will make just one last point, Mr.
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          2  Chair. Beyond the direct impact and the most

          3  significant impact it will have on the individuals

          4  who will benefit directly from this in achieving

          5  their human rights, this will further integrate

          6  human rights into the cultural and civic

          7  infrastructure, if you will, of our city.  We know

          8  it will remind all New Yorkers of the framework and

          9  fabric of human rights which covers all of us and

         10  which benefits all of us as New Yorkers directly or

         11  indirectly.  By assuring that this information, that

         12  the provisions of the human rights protections in

         13  this city are displayed prominently we will be

         14  molding, as I said, the civic culture in a way which

         15  makes human rights or affords to human rights

         16  protections the pre- eminent place it should occupy

         17  in the psyche and in the civic structure of our

         18  city.  That ultimately is how we will move even

         19  closer to the goal of equal rights and liberty to

         20  all.

         21                 I thank you very much for this

         22  hearing and this opportunity.  I look forward to the

         23  Council taking the lead in passing this legislation.

         24    Mr. Chair, I must acknowledge that this bill had

         25  been previously introduced by my predecessor,
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          2  Catherine Fried, who has done great work. I believe

          3  she may come to testify.  It's also been developed

          4  and propounded by many activists but none other than

          5  Mr. Tom Smith, the President of the Stonewall

          6  Democratic Club, who will be testifying later.  In

          7  case I'm not here for that, I wanted to be sure to

          8  acknowledge his stewardship of this right up front.

          9  Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you,

         11  Council Member Gerson.  Thank you again for your

         12  leadership.  I, too, experienced the excellent

         13  lobbying of the Stonewall Democratic Club.  I want

         14  to thank them for their visionary and persistent

         15  efforts on this important legislation.  Gale Brewer,

         16  again, the lead sponsor of Intro. 439.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         18  very much, Mr. Chairperson.  I also want to thank

         19  Jackie Sherman who's their awesome attorney for this

         20  committee who is always a resource for all of us,

         21  but particularly on 439.

         22                 The reason we are supporting this is

         23  that I think this administration deserves a lot of

         24  credit of improvement over the last one in terms of

         25  the Human Rights Commission which is a resource for
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          2  all New Yorkers.  I think, just as somebody who's

          3  been in government for a long time, there's always

          4  room for improvement.  I think what we want to be

          5  sure is that the city's Human Rights Commission is a

          6  place where a whole huge variety of complaints can

          7  always be handled.  That's what the purpose of this

          8  particular proposed law is.  It provides clear

          9  indication that the Human Rights Law must be

         10  interpreted to extend protections, not necessarily

         11  covered under similar federal and state anti-

         12  discrimination law.  The responses concerns the

         13  construction of various provisions of the Human

         14  Rights Law has significantly narrowed the scope of

         15  its protections over the years since its enactment

         16  in 1991.

         17                 It also proposes an amendment to the

         18  Administrative Code which defines marital status.

         19  The provision clarifies that the Human Rights Law's

         20  prohibition of discrimination on the basis of

         21  marital status applies both to the marital status of

         22  a person in isolation as well as to the marital

         23  status of a person in relation to another person.

         24                 It would clarify the Human Rights Law

         25  which prohibits discrimination against couples on
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          2  the basis that they are not married as well as on

          3  the basis that they are married.  It would clarify

          4  the intent of anti- retaliation provisions of the

          5  law.  It aims to preclude decision makers from

          6  complaining issues of liability for retaliation and

          7  the appropriate levels of damages to compensate a

          8  victim of retaliation, which is something that

          9  unfortunately happens too much in our society, by

         10  explicitly stating that the degree of harm is an

         11  appropriate consideration only in determining the

         12  appropriate level of damages, not in establishing

         13  liability.

         14                 It goes on.  It talks about the

         15  rigorous enforcement of the law, and this is the

         16  part that is of particular interest to me.  The bill

         17  would ensure that a person who successfully effects

         18  change by filing a complaint under the Human Rights

         19  Law can receive reimbursement for costs and

         20  attorneys fees, notwithstanding recent Supreme Court

         21  precedent overruling longstanding federal policy on

         22  a similar issue.  This particular aspect of the

         23  bill, and I think this is a complicated bill, one

         24  that needs some discussion, but that is extremely

         25  important for this committee to consider and would

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  improve the lives of many New Yorkers.  Thank you

          3  very much, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you,

          5  Council Member Brewer.  Thank you for your work on

          6  this bill.  I know it was a lot of work and its

          7  complex but very important subject matter.  I

          8  appreciate your praise for our committee counsel.  I

          9  think this is the newest test for Jackie Sherman,

         10  the four pieces of legislation hearing.  We're going

         11  to see if we can each month increase the number of

         12  pieces of legislation at one hearing to see if she

         13  can keep up.  So far she has been peerless.

         14                 I'd like to turn now to Council

         15  Member David Yassky.  Council Member, before you

         16  came in I spoke a little about the bill and how

         17  important it is and why this month in particular

         18  it's important.  Again, I want to thank you very

         19  much for your leadership and welcome your remarks.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Chair

         21  DeBlasio, I am eager to hear the witnesses and get a

         22   -- proceed with the hearing, so I will not add to

         23  what I understand were your remarks earlier, other

         24  than to thank you once again for your leadership,

         25  for holding this hearing, for the hearing you held
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          2  earlier on this bill.  I guess I should point out

          3  for the people here there are some changes to the

          4  bill since you -- the last hearing you held in

          5  response to some of the concerns raised by various

          6  members of the administration and some other outside

          7  commentators.  I think it's now a -- the bill does

          8  just as good a job of addressing the problem, but is

          9  I think just a little better drafted than it was

         10  originally.  Thanks again to your counsel, Ms.

         11  Sherman.

         12                 The two changes I draw people's

         13  attention to is one, that there's now a requirement

         14  of certification, that a survivor certify her status

         15  as a survivor of domestic violence.  The bill

         16  describes the ways in which she can do that, but I

         17  think that's a way of making sure that claims are

         18  legitimate claims and not bogus claims, but without

         19  putting any undue burden on the person seeking

         20  relief.

         21                 Also, the definition of reasonable

         22  accommodation was fleshed out.  Part of the bill, as

         23  you know, requires employers and landlords to make

         24  reasonable accommodation to survivors of domestic

         25  violence.  What the bill now says is that reasonable
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          2  accommodation in the case of a landlord would mean

          3  permitting a tenant to terminate a lease and vacate

          4  an apartment without suffering any penalty. In other

          5  words, so a woman who is being stalked by an

          6  ex- boyfriend or a stalker, who says I've got to get

          7  out of this apartment, would not be required to stay

          8  in the apartment or face losing the thousands of

          9  dollars in obligations under a lease.  I think those

         10  are two very sensible and important changes and I

         11  think that they address the concerns that were

         12  raised at the last hearing and since the last

         13  hearing.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you,

         15  Council Member Yassky.  I know, again, this was a

         16  lot of work to grapple with, the complexities of

         17  this bill.  Thank you for all you've done on this.

         18  I also can't say strongly enough

         19  if you ever want to see a piece of legislation that

         20  was based in the reality that people are

         21  experiencing and the fact that our law is currently

         22  not addressing all of that reality, this is it.  We

         23  must ensure that victims of domestic violence are

         24  not victimized twice by problems in our law.

         25                 I want to also, as I mentioned
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          2  earlier, Tracy Boyland has been a great leader in

          3  this Council on these issues.  As Chair of the

          4  Women's Issues Committee I'd like to have her say a

          5  few remarks.

          6                 MS. BOYLAND:  Thank you, Chair

          7  DeBlasio, good morning.  I'm glad that we are

          8  looking at Intro. 107.  City government has made

          9  tremendous strides over the last ten years in

         10  addressing domestic violence in bills like this as

         11  part of the reason why, why is this occurring.

         12                 As you know, domestic violence is a

         13  complicated issue to deal with.  Intimate violence

         14  affects women and men in many ways including a

         15  survivor's ability to feel safe at home and work.

         16  Intro. 107 extends our human right laws to prohibit

         17  housing discrimination and require reasonable

         18  accommodations in employment of the needs of victims

         19  and domestic violence sex offenders and/or stalkers.

         20  By adding verification requiring and narrowing the

         21  definitions of reasonable accommodations we know

         22  more clearly what situations are covered under this

         23  bill without weakening the spirit of the law.

         24                 I'm looking forward to the hearing,

         25  more comments on this bill and I thank the Chair and
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          2  everyone who had part of this, bringing this

          3  gathering together today, especially you, Chair

          4  DeBlasio.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you,

          6  Chair Boyland.  All right.  Now we have

          7  representatives of the administration, of the Human

          8  Rights Commission.  Again, they'll be speaking to

          9  all four pieces of legislation in turn.  We welcome

         10  their testimony and I believe that Cliff Mulqueen,

         11  the Deputy Commissioner and General Counsel, will

         12  lead off.  Welcome, Cliff.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  Thank

         14  you. Mr. Chairman, Council members, good morning.

         15  Thank you for giving the commission an opportunity

         16  to testify before you regarding these four pieces of

         17  legislation, Intro. 107A, 353, 417 and 439, which

         18  would amend the New York City Human Rights Law.

         19  Unfortunately, Patricia Gatling, the Commissioner

         20  Chair of the Human Rights Commission is not

         21  available to be here.  She had a pre- existing

         22  obligation and is currently out of the country.

         23                 I'd like to begin my testimony with

         24  the administration's proposed legislation and say

         25  that the administration is no longer supporting
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          2  Intro. 417 as drafted due to concerns raised by the

          3  disabled community.  Some of the concerns raised by

          4  the interested parties made it clear that revisions

          5  to the bill are necessary in order to get something

          6  that is functional for everyone.  It is our hope

          7  that we can achieve substantial equivalency at some

          8  point in the future.

          9                 The commission appreciates that the

         10  Council has addressed the various concerns we had

         11  relating to Intro. 107A, however since the latest

         12  version of the proposal was not provided until close

         13  of business yesterday, we request more time to

         14  consider it and will provide the Council with

         15  comments after the hearing.

         16                 In theory, the commission supports

         17  the spirit and purpose of Intro. 353, however we are

         18  concerned about the cost of translating and

         19  producing the tens of millions of signs detailing

         20  the Human Rights Law that would be required by the

         21  proposal and the city's enforcement resources that

         22  would be necessary to visit the millions of covered

         23  locations to ensure that they're compliant with the

         24  law.

         25                 Intro. 439 is of concern for a number
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          2  of reasons including the impression given by the

          3  title that civil rights in New York City need to be

          4  restored or that this proposed legislation would

          5  accomplish that restoration. We also question the

          6  proposed definition of marital status, the

          7  implication that the commission does not conduct

          8  thorough investigations, that we must reject the

          9  accepted legal standards and helpful case law and

         10  also we have concerns regarding the award of

         11  attorneys fees.

         12                 The commission currently defines

         13  marital status as referring to either those who are

         14  married or those who are single.  It appears that

         15  the proposal seeks to add another category of

         16  protection from discrimination by association, where

         17  the basis of that discrimination does not fall

         18  within currently protected classes but rather some

         19  other unprotected characteristic of an individual.

         20  The commission feels that this definition would be

         21  inappropriate since it does not relate to the

         22  definition of marital status or any other protected

         23  class but rather extends the law to protect based

         24  upon personality traits, individual qualities or

         25  characteristics.  If the purpose is to change -- or
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          2  the purpose of this change is to clarify that

          3  marital status refers to both individuals who are

          4  married and those who are single, then we suggest

          5  that the definition simply state that.

          6                 The commission already conducts their

          7  own investigations in every case.  The term

          8   "throughout," however, is impossible to define and

          9  depends largely on the facts of the given case, the

         10  resources available and the likelihood of uncovering

         11  relevant information by pursuing a particular

         12  investigatory avenue.  Whether an investigation is

         13  thorough can be a matter of opinion having no legal

         14  basis or definition.  As the courts have repeatedly

         15  held, the commission has the discretion to determine

         16  the means and methods of its own investigation.

         17                 The commission is proud to be charged

         18  with enforcing the strongest, most encompassing

         19  human rights law in the nation and also interprets

         20  the law in the most liberal fashion allowable within

         21  legal standards.  There does, however, need to be

         22  some legal standard for employers, housing providers

         23  and individuals who provide services to New York

         24  City to rely upon to keep them informed about the

         25  law and its requirements.  Unfortunately the
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          2  commission does not have an abundance of its own

          3  case law available so we often seek guidance from

          4  federal and state cases.  Therefore we disagree with

          5  the proposed provisions that would limit the

          6  commission's reliance on accepted state and federal

          7  case law.

          8                 The commission views its mission as

          9  providing assistance to people who have nowhere else

         10  to turn for help. Often they do not have the big

         11  money cases and in most instances would not be able

         12  to find an attorney to assist with their claim on a

         13  contingency fee arrangement.  In the instances where

         14  an attorney is willing to represent the individual,

         15  the attorney has several options, some that allow

         16  for the recovery of attorneys fees and costs and

         17  some that don't.  An attorney that opts to file in

         18  State or Federal Court may allege violations of the

         19  Human Rights Law and obtain the same protections

         20  they would have received at the commission while, at

         21  the same time, allowing for the award of costs and

         22  attorneys fees.  This aspect of the proposal will

         23  not benefit either the commission or potential

         24  complainants, it will only serve to benefit the

         25  Plaintiff's Bar.  On the other hand, it would cause
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          2  great harm to the city and that the city, the

          3  largest employer and housing provider in the five

          4  boroughs, already pays for the services provided by

          5  the commission and under the proposal may be

          6  required to pay a second time in the form of costs

          7  and attorney's fees.               Additionally,

          8  awarding attorney's fees will adversely affect the

          9  commission by opening up to additional litigation.

         10                 Thank you for your time and the

         11  opportunity to share our views.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you,

         13  Commissioner.  I'm going to turn to my colleagues,

         14  particularly the sponsors of each piece of

         15  legislation in just a moment.  I just want to

         16  respond very briefly.  First I want to thank you.  I

         17  think the reconsideration you're showing on 417 is

         18  absolutely appropriate.  I'm pleased.  I know there

         19  have been discussions over the last few days. I'm

         20  pleased that the commission has made the formal

         21  decision to pull back and look at that again.  I

         22  appreciate that you've heard the very real concerns

         23  that advocates and the Council have raised.

         24                 On 107A we understand, of course,

         25  that you've seen the most recent version just now.

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  I think there will still be some questions today

          3  potentially because I think we're still -- we

          4  believe we've come a long way to accommodate the

          5  previously raised concerns.  I think we could still

          6  have some dialogue on that.

          7                 On 353, just to say that I appreciate

          8  the concerns that you raise but I also want to note

          9  that there's a lot of work going on in the Council

         10  right now.  In terms of recognizing that if we're

         11  going to serve all of New York City we have to

         12  recognize the need to translate documents and to

         13  provide services in multiple languages.  So I

         14  appreciate administratively the perspective you're

         15  bringing here, but I also want to recognize that if

         16  we're going to do our work as expansively as we

         17  should we have to accept the fact that there will be

         18  that additional requirement to really get the job

         19  done.  I think that's what Council Member Gerson's

         20  bill is trying to achieve.

         21                 Lastly, on 439, I'm sure we'll have a

         22  number of questions or comments here, but I think

         23  that what I'm not sure I'm hearing in the testimony,

         24  I look forward to hearing further elaboration on, is

         25  I think the goal of this bill is to make sure that
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          2  it's absolutely crystal clear that all categories of

          3  people in need of protection are being protected.  I

          4  think there are still areas that have not been

          5  covered, as we saw most recently with the

          6  transgender rights bill, so I guess I'd appreciate

          7  an honest explanation as we go along of whether

          8  you're saying that you think some of the definition

          9  provided in 439 is not necessary or you think it's

         10  covered elsewhere.  I'm still not clear enough about

         11  that from your testimony.  My personal belief is the

         12  more we finetune the human rights law the better we

         13  are able to protect each and every individual.  Just

         14  some broad comments.

         15                 I'd like to turn --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  Mr.

         17  Chairman, could I respond to -- the two points you

         18  raised I'd like to respond to.

         19                 The Commissioner absolutely

         20  recognizes the need to translate our literature into

         21  other languages and you're familiar with the

         22  literature we produced in the last year that we've

         23  been at the commission and all of it has been

         24  translated into the various languages necessary to

         25  reach as many people as possible.  So we have no
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          2  concern about the need to translate our literature,

          3  it's just the concern about the cost.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  I really do

          5  respect that and I've worked with the commissioner,

          6  as I've said, for quite a while.  I remember in the

          7  early '90s the already six, seven, eight languages

          8  translations were available in all the major

          9  documents produced by the Human Rights Commission,

         10  but I think it's a little bit of a tree falls in the

         11  woods problem.  I think that's what Council Member

         12  Gerson put together this legislation to respond to,

         13  that if we're not putting the information where the

         14  people are, even the noble efforts made to date to

         15  translate and provide good quality information still

         16  aren't reaching the intended folks, so it's a

         17  respectful clarification but I just think there's

         18  times when we have to invest if we want to make sure

         19  that we're doing the work we set out to do.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  And

         21  with regard to the definition of marital status, I

         22  would agree that the Human Rights Law is not clear

         23  in the definition. What I said in the testimony is

         24  that at the commission we interpret marital status

         25  to mean individuals who are married or individuals
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          2  who are single and that neither should be

          3  discriminated against on the basis of that.  The way

          4  I read the definition, I see it going a little

          5  further and that it's seeking to protect individuals

          6  from discrimination based upon the individual

          7  qualities of who they're married to as opposed to

          8  the fact that they're married in general. So that's

          9  the concern that I raise.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  I appreciate

         11  that and as I said at the outset Council Member

         12  Brewer's taken on a very difficult and complex task

         13  in this legislation.  I'm just saying as a general

         14  philosophical matter, I think you've seen this in

         15  this term of the Council and before, the Council

         16  often chooses to want to greater clarify -- create a

         17  greater clarification of how we are going to

         18  approach human rights or many other areas.  I think

         19  we see our responsibility to codify good existing

         20  practices rather than to leave them in the hands of

         21  this or any other administration, knowing that an

         22  administration could change its internal policies.

         23  I think if we feel that something is worthy of being

         24  implemented across the board year in and year out

         25  it's better to codify it very specifically and not
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          2  leave it to the possible changes that might occur

          3  from one administration to the next.  I'm saying I'm

          4  not disagreeing with some of how you approach it

          5  now, I'm saying it is our general belief that the

          6  greater specification is always advantageous.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  I hope

          8  that you remember that argument or that statement

          9  which is very valid when speaking about not relying

         10  on existing legal standards, federal or state case

         11  law, because that's the very concern we have, is

         12  that depending on who's in charge

         13  at the moment, those idea can fluctuate and be

         14  enforced in different ways and we think that might

         15  be somewhat unfair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  I'd like to

         17  turn to the sponsor of Intro. 439, Council Member

         18  Gale Brewer for the first question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         20  very much. As you know, the bill does try to address

         21  concerns that CCHR may not be able to, for a whole

         22  variety of reasons, conduct a thorough investigation

         23  of every complaint filed with the agency.  Obviously

         24  I think you'd like to because certainly it's your

         25  personal belief that this should be done.  I think
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          2  some recent Anti- discrimination Center of Metro New

          3  York detailed some of these concerns.

          4                 My question is under what

          5  circumstances are investigations limited to simply

          6  interviewing the complainant and approximately what

          7  percentage of complaints filed with the agency

          8  result in investigations that are limited to

          9  interviewing the complainant?  In your opinion, does

         10  that type of investigation constitute a thorough

         11  investigation and, if so, under what circumstances?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:

         13  Council Member, as I said in my testimony, it's

         14  impossible to define what a thorough investigation

         15  is, it depends on the facts of the given case.  I'll

         16  give you an example by way of analogy. Let's assume

         17  that an African- American came to the commission and

         18  stated a claim that he or she was terminated from

         19  their employment because they are African- American.

         20    That would be discrimination that was covered by

         21  the Human Rights Law and we would draft a complaint

         22  in that circumstance and file it with the

         23  respondent.

         24                 To continue the example, let's say

         25  that whoever the respondent was comes back to us and
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          2  tells us that obviously they're not discriminating

          3  against this individual because they're African-

          4  American, they terminated the individual because

          5  they are a poor employee.  They provide written

          6  documentation as to the deficiencies that they see

          7  and the reasons why they terminated the employee and

          8  they further indicate that out of the 50 or 60

          9  employees that they have, a good number of them are

         10  African- American and in fact not only have those

         11  people not been discriminated against, but they have

         12  been promoted throughout the company and are treated

         13  very well.  In that instance we might go back to the

         14  complainant and we might say to the complainant,

         15   "Hey, this is what they say.  Are these things

         16  true?  Are there a good number of African Americans

         17  at this particular employer?  Have they been treated

         18  poorly?  I mean you're the only one that's been

         19  treated poorly?  You mean you did commit all of

         20  these violations of policy or that you were

         21  deficient in the ways that they claim you were

         22  deficient?"  Well, that would be an example of the

         23  case that would end at that point.  There's no

         24  reason to do anything further in our view because

         25  it's obvious that the person was terminated not
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          2  because of their race but because of valid reasons.

          3  So in that instance I would call that a thorough

          4  investigation.

          5                 Now, under that same scenario if an

          6  individual came to us and it turns out that maybe

          7  that person was the only person of color working at

          8  that particular company out of the 50 or 60

          9  employees and maybe there weren't any written

         10  documents regarding deficiencies that the company

         11  had with them.  Then I might need to go further in

         12  that instance.  I might need to interview fellow

         13  employees or supervisors or I might need to make a

         14  determination of whether deficiencies in the

         15  person's work were motivated by their race and not

         16  their actual work.  So it wouldn't be a thorough

         17  investigation in that case just to talk to the

         18  complainant, I would need to go further.  But every

         19  case is different.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And you feel

         21  in every case you're able or there is need to do the

         22  interviewing, it is done.  In other words, obviously

         23  there are some limitations in terms of budget

         24  concerns, but you feel that you are able to take it

         25  as far as it needs to go?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  I'm

          3  satisfied that we've conducted a thorough

          4  investigation in every case that we've handled at

          5  the commission.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  I know

          7  this came up earlier, but in your opinion, and you

          8  addressed this in your testimony, but I just want to

          9  be clear, does the Human Rights Law protect couples

         10  against discrimination on the basis that they are

         11  not married and if so where is that protection

         12  found?  For instance, the one that I am most

         13  familiar with, should landlords be able to refuse to

         14  rent to couples on the basis that they are not

         15  married.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  At the

         17  commission we believe that discrimination on the

         18  basis of two individuals, whether they be a man and

         19  a woman, a man and a man or a woman and a woman,

         20  should not occur and that it would be a violation of

         21  the law.  We've had cases where that has been

         22  alleged and we've investigated and addressed those

         23  cases.  I do not believe that there is a specific

         24  definition of marital status in the Human Rights

         25  Law.  I don't argue that it's not necessary that
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          2  maybe one should be there.  I just suggest that if

          3  the goal of the proposed change or proposed

          4  legislation is to make it clear that the Human

          5  Rights Law covers both married individuals and

          6  single individuals that it would be very clear just

          7  to say that instead of the definition that we

          8  currently have --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  -- Or

         11  that is proposed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I'll come

         13  back.  Let other people get a change.  Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you,

         16  Council Member.  I'd like to turn on the same topic

         17   -- again we're going to try and group it as much as

         18  humanly possible.  On 439 I'd like to turn to

         19  Council Member Chris Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         21  First I want, as it relates to this bill, thank

         22  Council Member Brewer for introducing this

         23  legislation.  I think it's the sponsor of the bill

         24  and a very important piece of legislation to help

         25  make sure that all people are covered effectively by
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          2  the Human Rights Law in the city.

          3                 When you just responded to Council

          4  Member Brewer's question regarding the marriage

          5  definition, you said that you, the Human Rights

          6  Commission, think of married or single people as men

          7  or women, women and women, men and men which -- I

          8  was glad to hear that clarification because I'm

          9  concerned that in your testimony you very

         10  specifically said that you look at couples as either

         11  married or single but nowhere did you use the word

         12   "domestic partners."  Why is that?  How does the

         13  commission relate to people who are domestic

         14  partners?  How is that covered?  Why was that

         15  omitted?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  If one

         17  or two individuals came to us and said that they

         18  were discriminated against on the basis of their

         19  sexual preferences --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  No, no, no --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  I

         22  understand what you're saying but --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  No, you

         24  actually don't because, and this is deeply troubling

         25  to me, that the Human Rights, someone from the Human
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          2  Rights Commission would not know that in fact

          3  domestic partnership in the City of New York has no

          4  relationship to one's sexual orientation which is

          5  the term that is preferred, not sexual preference.

          6  That in fact if you were to speak to the City Clerk

          7  upwards of 70% of those people who are registered

          8  domestic partners in the City of New York are self-

          9  disclosed heterosexuals.  So if someone came to you

         10  and said they were being discriminated against based

         11  on sexual orientation you are clearly bound by law

         12  to help them.  That is very -- that may intersect

         13  with being discriminated against with the fact that

         14  they are domestic partners but it may not.  If the

         15  statistics of the City Clerk indicate you are more

         16  likely to hear from domestic partners who are

         17  heterosexual than lesbian, gay, bisexual or

         18  transgender.  With that information, how is it that

         19  domestic partnership is covered under the law and by

         20  the commission?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MELMAN:  Avery

         22  Melman, Deputy Commissioner, Law Enforcement.

         23                 With all due respect, Council Miss

         24  Quinn, we have covered domestic partner

         25  relationships that have been both men and women who
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          2  are united by domestic partnership as well as men

          3  and men and women and women.  In fact, recently we

          4  just settled a case to a large amount of money,

          5  approximately $60,000, where a domestic partnership

          6  that was a man and a woman who were domestic

          7  partners were not --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I've heard of

          9  it.  I know it's crazy --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MELMAN:  -- Were

         11  not covered by the company insurance because they

         12  were not married, as with regard to other

         13  individuals that work there that were domestic

         14  partners that were same sex domestic partners, they

         15  were covered.  Thus these individuals were being

         16  discriminated against as a result of the fact that

         17  they were not married but that they were registered

         18  as domestic partners and one was a man and the other

         19  person was a woman.  We resolved that case to a

         20  large extent due to the fact that it was found to be

         21  discriminatory based upon the Human Rights Law.  It

         22  did fall into the definition that these people were

         23  discriminated against because they were not married.

         24    As Deputy Commissioner Mulqueen correctly pointed

         25  out, they were not married and therefore based upon
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          2  the fact that they were not married they were not

          3  given the same benefits as a couple that was married

          4  and thus that is discrimination under the Human

          5  Rights Law.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But I guess

          7  I'm still -- yes and maybe not a hundred percent

          8  because first -- and secondly I'm still concerned

          9  that in your testimony when you spoke of the part of

         10  the law that deals with relationships you did not

         11  include the word "domestic partnership" at any point

         12  even in response to Council Member Brewer's question

         13  around marriage and relationship.  In fact, I don't

         14  know the specifics of that case, but probably in

         15  that company there was a threshold that you had to

         16  demonstrate to the Human Resources Administration

         17  that proved you were a domestic partner.  Maybe you

         18  had to register in their company, maybe you

         19  registered in the City of New York, maybe you had to

         20  come forward and say we're domestic partners.  They

         21  were not single, they were not married, but they

         22  were not single.  So that company had set up a

         23  definition of domestic partnership that did not meet

         24  the city's Human Rights Law.  I applaud you for

         25  bringing justice for that couple and making sure
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          2  that they get the health insurance they need, but I

          3  think that --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MELMAN:  They

          5  were registered domestic partners.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Exactly my

          7  point.  So they were not single people.  They were

          8  not discriminated against because they were not

          9  married, they were discriminated against based on

         10  the interpretation of that company of domestic

         11  partnership, right, that they were heterosexual

         12  domestic partners versus lesbian or gay domestic

         13  partners because that was what you said the company

         14  had, right?  So it wasn't the nature of the

         15  relationship there.  So why, all of that said, don't

         16  you mention domestic partners when you testified

         17  about relationships?  I think it's similar to the

         18  case you raised, I just don't think it hits -- and

         19  it hardens me to hear that you had that very

         20  successful ruling, but it doesn't hit the nail on

         21  the head with my concern.  If I'm not being clear

         22  enough, I apologize. Again, why when you rattled off

         23  the relationship possibility, single or married, you

         24  did not mention domestic partnership, regardless of

         25  sexual orientation.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  I

          3  don't know that I have a satisfactory answer for

          4  you, Council Member Quinn, but --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  -- I

          7  will say is that we have and will continue to

          8  protect individuals regardless of their sex, whether

          9  they're domestic partners or legally married under

         10  state law.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you for

         12  your answer and, recognizing that it might not be

         13  exactly what I was looking for, I would very much

         14  want to explore this further with the commission and

         15  the committee and the sponsor, Council Member

         16  Brewer, of Intro. 439 because I think this exchange

         17  in some way underscores, in a very clear way

         18  underscores the need for Intro. 439, so I look

         19  forward to following up on that.

         20                 I just want to say, and perhaps this

         21  is something we'll need to follow up on in the

         22  General Welfare Committee, this is the second time

         23  in as many weeks that I have heard city agencies

         24  testify in relationship to the Human Rights Law and

         25  not get it right.  Literally, the Department of
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          2  Education sat in the other room a week ago and

          3  rattled off the type of students that they protect

          4  as it relates to Council Member Gerson's Dignity for

          5  All Students Act and they omitted gender identity

          6  and gender expression and transgender students in

          7  that.  I believe you have omitted domestic partners

          8  in yours.  So I am concerned, very much concerned

          9  because you're the Human Rights Commission -- at

         10  least they were the Department of Education -- that

         11  there is a significant disconnect within our city

         12  agencies about the Human Rights Law, about who it is

         13  to protect and how it is implemented.  I would want

         14  to follow up with the commission and the committee

         15  on that.  Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  I want to say

         17  amen to Council Member Quinn's concern.  I, too, was

         18  very -- I happened to be at both hearings she was at

         19  and was equally concerned.  I was actually

         20  particularly concerned in the Department of

         21  Education case because it felt like they were

         22  several months behind reality.  So it is something

         23  that we are very, very concerned, to make sure

         24  everything is not just up to date for the sake of

         25  legality and the wording on the page but that the
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          2  feeling running through the leadership of each

          3  agency, that the message being sent up and down the

          4  line is up to date with city law.

          5                 Let me just ask, are there any other

          6  questions in this point in the hearing?  Obviously

          7  there may be a second round of questions, but any

          8  questions at this point on Intro. 439?  Any other

          9  questions?  You want to come back?  Certainly.

         10  Council Member Brewer.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I'll be

         12  quick.  One of the issues is do you think that

         13  picking up on the case that you just mentioned in

         14  terms of the private company, but there are many

         15  others, do you think that the current maximums on

         16  civil penalties are enough to penalize a very large

         17  employer or large owner in the city?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  I

         19  think based on the history at the commission that

         20  the way they exist currently, they are enough.  The

         21  commission that I know has never fined somebody

         22  $50,000 or up to $100,000 as the law currently

         23  permits.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Is it true

         25  that complainants receive no monetary compensation
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          2  in more than 40% of the cases you settled in the

          3  last fiscal year?  I don't know if it's true or not.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:

          5  Between cases that we settled and cases that came to

          6  us that we were able to intervene on and settled, I

          7  believe the number for the prior fiscal year is 312

          8  resolutions in favor of the complainant.  84 of

          9  those resolutions resulted in monetary damages for

         10  the complainant.  I don't know what the percentage

         11  is.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  There are

         13  many more questions, Mr. Chairman, but I think we'll

         14  stop here.  Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you and

         16  of course we're happy to do another round later in

         17  the hearing if that's helpful.  All right.  We'll

         18  move to one of the other pieces of legislation.

         19  Before I do, I want to welcome Council Member Jose

         20  Serrano and I think I welcomed everyone else

         21  previously along the way.  I also want to

         22  acknowledge

         23  there are a lot of wonderful advocates in the room

         24  and service providers in the room.  I want to thank

         25  all of you for being here, but I have to do a
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          2  special active personal privilege and welcome my

          3  distinguished former colleague from the Dinkins

          4  administration Ann Emmerman who was the Director of

          5  the Mayor's Office for People with Disabilities

          6  during the Dinkins administration and has done

          7  tremendous work on behalf of all New Yorkers.  Thank

          8  you for being here, Ann.

          9                 Let's turn to Intro. 353.  I'd like

         10  to give an opportunity to question to Council Member

         11  Alan Gerson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         13  very much, Mr. Chair.  Good morning.  Let me just

         14  say I welcome your statement of support in principle

         15  of this bill.  I think that kind of gets to the

         16  heart of the bill, what we're trying to do, bridge

         17  the gap between principle or theory and reality.

         18  Let's see if we can figure out a way to do that

         19  together.

         20  I may have missed something you said in your

         21  conversation with Chairperson DeBlasio, but if I

         22  heard you right you did say that the commission

         23  routinely translates important documents in just

         24  about all these languages, probably more. If that is

         25  the case, I guess what would be the extra cost
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          2  involved in really just printing if need be the

          3  requisite terms which I think you said you already

          4  translated?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  What I

          6  said is that the commission recognizes the need to

          7  translate our literature and has translated our

          8  literature in the past, or the literature that we've

          9  distributed at least in the last year since we've

         10  been at the commission or a little more than a year.

         11    It is our experience, however, that having this

         12  literature printed and translated is very expensive,

         13  and we don't do it on the level that the proposed

         14  legislation would require us to do.  If we attempt

         15  to target particular groups of people, maybe we have

         16  to print four or 500 copies of the literature that

         17  we're working on and it ends up being 600, $1,000

         18  just to get the printing done in one language.  Then

         19  if we're talking about doing it in other languages

         20  it becomes much more expensive.  The way I read the

         21  proposed legislation, the bill requires that the

         22  commission in essence would have to post literature

         23  in every employer, every business, every public

         24  accommodation, whether it be a store, a theater,

         25  virtually tens of millions of locations.  So the
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          2  expense of that would be exorbitant and we're

          3  concerned about where that money would come from.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, I

          5  believe the operative language in terms of the

          6  languages in which the translation needs to be made

          7  is as the commission specifies in order to assure

          8  that the notice -- so I mean clearly it allows the

          9  commission to have reasonable amount of targeted --

         10  I mean I represent, for example in my district, the

         11  Chinatown community and I'm not quite sure that if

         12  in the exercise of reasonable discretion the

         13  commission would need in the places of employment in

         14  that community or some of the other offices to have

         15  the translation made into, for example, Yiddish or

         16  what have you.  So I mean, what we are saying is

         17  that we're trying to give the commission as much

         18  discretion as possible to be as targeted as

         19  necessary to do the job but without incurring more

         20  cost than would be required.  Do you know, have you

         21  done a cost estimate as to what the cost

         22  differential is between the current translation and

         23  additional translation in printing?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  I was

         25  told that OMB might be working on those numbers.  I
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          2  don't have those numbers, but I would estimate that

          3  even to produce the literature about the Human

          4  Rights Law into English alone and to -- that would

          5  cost hundreds of thousands of dollars, and now we're

          6  talking about the translations on top of that and

          7  the printing in the other languages.  Obviously, we

          8  would target the neighborhoods that we were working

          9  in and we wouldn't translate the literature into

         10  languages that probably aren't spoken in that

         11  language in that particular neighborhood, but even

         12  just to produce this literature in English alone

         13  would be hundreds of thousands of dollars.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  The

         15  translation's probably already done.  We're talking

         16  about printing costs. We're talking about bulk

         17  printing costs.  Is that not correct?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  We are

         19  talking about printing costs.  I mean we have --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So we're

         21  talking about a bulk printing contract and you say

         22  OMB is working on the numbers?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  I was

         24  told that they would come up with some numbers.  I

         25  don't know whether they did or not.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I'll look

          3  forward to getting those numbers.  I mean I can't

          4  imagine -- you know, the city does so much

          5  translation.  I mean routinely we do translation on

          6  more languages within the school system. I've seen

          7  no smoking notices translated throughout the subways

          8  and in so many different areas.  It seems to me that

          9  if we're translating it already the cost of a bulk

         10  printing contract to get this job done right should

         11  not be prohibitive.  I would look forward to hearing

         12  the specifics from OMB and then continuing that part

         13  of the discussion.

         14                 Just one last point:  I take it the

         15  reason you did testify as you testified you do

         16  translations already and distribute it where you

         17  can, I take it the reason you do that is because you

         18  recognize that translation is important to get the

         19  message across, otherwise you would not do it at

         20  all.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  We

         22  absolutely agree with that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.  With

         24  that I would just point out that the Mayor and this

         25  administration has repeatedly cited as the strength
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          2  of our city our multi cultural, multi- lingual

          3  character.  If in fact -- and I agree with that.  I

          4  think we all agree with that, but if we're going to

          5  be true to that, we need to assure that all

          6  participants in this wonderful multi- cultural and

          7  multi lingual society benefit from basic laws

          8  protecting their fundamental human rights.  As you

          9  have just testified, if translation is important to

         10  disseminating the requisite information it seems to

         11  me we should get the numbers and figure out a way to

         12  make it possible to do the job.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  Again,

         14  I agree that it's important.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I look

         16  forward to following up with you and figuring out

         17  how to make it work.

         18  Thank you very much.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 Mr. Chair, I do need to beg your

         20  indulgence, due to prior commitments I do have to

         21  leave the hearing but again I thank you for allowing

         22  me this opportunity to be your guest.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Certainly I

         24  understand that.  Thank you very much.

         25                 I just want to follow up on the
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          2  point.  I think -- I want to make sure.  I heard a

          3  broad agreement on the goal here.  I understand the

          4  budgetary concern and I think that's a common

          5  concern.  We're all worried about the budget right

          6  now.  I think by the same token, once we have OMB's

          7  understanding and we'll have our own Council finance

          8  staff look at it, if it is a valid debate over

          9  money, that can be part of the budget process

         10  because I think we all agree we could achieve a lot

         11  here.

         12                 On the enforcement front, this is the

         13  point and the question I have, I'm not sure I would

         14  look at it as a question of enforcement being such

         15  an overwhelming concern as to stop us from taking

         16  the action to begin with.  I think it's very valid

         17  to say that if we are taking an action we're not

         18  sure we can enforce properly, will we have the

         19  impact we would like to have.  Absolutely a valid

         20  concern, you're absolutely right, it would be very

         21  difficult to enforce day in and day out.  That's a

         22  different question from would a, if you will, less

         23  enforced bill still be beneficial.

         24                 I guess my argument would be, I'll

         25  base this on personal experience, and I think a lot
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          2  of us have spent a lot of time for example going

          3  door to door in our neighborhoods during the fall of

          4  each two year cycle, and I go into buildings in

          5  Brooklyn and I see the various statements about the

          6  law relating to housing by HPD and it says,

          7   "Commissioner Anthony Glideman" at the bottom who

          8  was a commissioner during the Koch administration.

          9  You can find those placards all over Brooklyn still

         10  in the vestibules of various apartment buildings.  I

         11  can't tell you how many dry cleaners and other

         12  places I've been in that still think Mark Green is

         13  the Consumer Affairs Commissioner.

         14                 So the point is if a statement or a

         15  record of what the rights are in a certain instance

         16  is posted broadly, it's amazing what the shelf life

         17  will be.  It's amazing how helpful it can be.  Of

         18  course a lot of places are not going to post or not

         19  going to post properly.  Of course over time some

         20  people will take it down or cover it up or whatever

         21  it may be, but imagine for a moment that this bill

         22  were enacted and every single day tens of thousands

         23  of New Yorkers saw the postings where they did go up

         24  and stay up, we'd still be so much farther ahead of

         25  the game.  So I just want to make sure that we're
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          2  not missing each other on the question of

          3  enforcement.  Real detailed enforcement is the ideal

          4  but you can still have an effective law with

          5  imperfect enforcement.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  As I

          7  stated, I agree with the spirit of the proposal.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  An elegant

          9  response. You obviously went to law school.

         10  Actually that's more of a response from a

         11  presidential press secretary.  You've been watching

         12  West Wing.  Are there any other questions on 353 at

         13  this moment?  Okay.

         14                 I'd like to turn to Intro. 107A and

         15  I'd like to offer an opportunity to Council Member

         16  David Yassky, the sponsor of the bill to open the

         17  questioning.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you for

         19  the opportunity.  I understand that you've not had a

         20  great deal of time to review the revised version, so

         21  I look forward to working with you and hearing your

         22  comments.  As I said at the outset, I believe that

         23   -- I hope that we've addressed the concerns that

         24  were raised by your agency and others in the last

         25  hearing and since then, but I look forward to

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  hearing from you over the coming days, whether you

          3  agree that we have.

          4                 Just two things in particular.  One

          5  is that I recall that your agency raised at the last

          6  hearing this question of documentation to ensure

          7  that people making a claim of victimization or claim

          8  of discrimination under this provision had some

          9  documentation validating that they are in fact --

         10  had in fact experienced domestic violence.  I

         11  recognize you may not have had a chance to look

         12  through the entire bill, but have you looked at just

         13  this section on documentation of status, Section 3A

         14   -- or rather 3B enough to ascertain whether that

         15  addresses your concerns?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  As I

         17  said, it appears that you have addressed a lot of

         18  the concerns that we had at the last time that we

         19  met and discussed this bill.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  I did

         22  take a quick read of it and I prefer not to comment

         23  until I've had a chance to look at it more but I do

         24  possibly have a concern that a statement from the

         25  individual him or herself would be sufficient to
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          2  meet that certification, but I really would like to

          3  look at it a little --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Fair enough,

          5  fair enough.  Let's pursue that.  Just my only other

          6  question, one of the concerns that your agency

          7  raised last time was as to the definition, not this

          8  certification documentation part, but the actual

          9  definition in the bill of survivor of intimate

         10  violence, we struggled here and I know we had some

         11  conversations with the representatives of the

         12  administration about how to address that.  This bill

         13  really has not changed that definition materially

         14  Do you have or do you think you will be forthcoming

         15  with -- do you think you will have a proposed way to

         16  change this definition?  This definition is copied

         17  from, I believe, state law and we kind of felt that

         18  it was the most solid formulation of this definition

         19  we could come up with.  Do you think you'll have

         20  recommended changes to that?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  I can

         22  look at that, I can discuss it with the

         23  administration, I can see if there were -- if they

         24  want me to work on that I'd be happy to.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay, please
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          2  do.  I guess I think this definition modeled or

          3  really copied as it is from state law.  That was

          4  about the best that we could come up with.  If you

          5  have recommended changes I certainly would welcome

          6  hearing them.  Thank you again, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you,

          8  Council Member Yassky.  I have a clarifying

          9  question.  Does anybody else have a question on

         10  107A?  Okay.  I just want to make sure, and forgive

         11  me if I've missed on this, I appreciate the response

         12  earlier that you are still examining the new

         13  copying, that you think some of the concerns have

         14  been addressed that you raised or the administration

         15  raised and others have raised, but you still have

         16  some outstanding concerns.  I just want to make sure

         17  I'm understanding this point.  Do you agree broadly

         18  that we do have to somehow provide some

         19  clarification in the Human Rights Law to protect

         20  victims of domestic violence as well as victims of

         21  sex offenses and stalking in these particular broad

         22  categories?  This is a very broad question.  I just

         23  want to make sure we're at least on the same page in

         24  the beginning of this process that in public

         25  accommodation, housing, employment, that we're

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  working from the assumption that we all think some

          3  clarification is needed here.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  Let me

          5  say that we -- I came into this job with that

          6  protection existing in the employment setting and

          7  questioned myself why it didn't exist in the housing

          8  or other settings as well. So in effect maybe the

          9  job wasn't completed in the past, so I have no issue

         10  with the protections that already exist in the

         11  housing setting -- I'm sorry, in the employment

         12  setting, existing in the housing and other areas of

         13  the Human Rights Law as well.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  And as a

         15  matter again of I think we all grapple here with

         16  both the messages we send and the specific function

         17  or mechanical things we achieve through law, that --

         18  do you agree with the statement that further

         19  clarification on all these fronts including even on

         20  the employment front would be helpful in sending a

         21  message to employers, to landlords and others to see

         22  accommodating victims of domestic violence and of

         23  sex offenses and of stalking to see it in a positive

         24  light to help in a sense demystify the problem and

         25  help move people to a point where they understand
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          2  that they can accommodate folks who have gone

          3  through a lot in a way that can be consistent with

          4  whatever the work they do is?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  Well,

          6  I would be in favor of clearly defining what the

          7  Human Rights Law covers so that people understand

          8  what their rights and obligations are, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  But I'm also

         10  saying additionally there is a sort of a message we

         11  send when we do that and I'm presuming one of the

         12  things you look at n the Human Rights Commission

         13  again is not just how you do the specific work day

         14  in and day out, but how you educate the public.  I'm

         15  presuming if we did whatever the final wording of

         16  this law and I think this most recent wording really

         17  is very good and probably will be that final

         18  wording, that that can also be something that you

         19  can use and we can use to educate the public.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  When

         21  the message is clear, it's easier to educate

         22  individuals, yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Very good.

         24  Thank you.

         25  Let me just see if my colleagues have any other
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          2  questions on any of the three bills.  Council Member

          3  Brewer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Very quickly,

          5  if somebody is to walk into a situation, would it be

          6  illegal for a landlord to say to a couple seeking an

          7  apartment, "I won't rent to you because you're

          8  unmarried"?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:  In my

         10  opinion, that would be a violation of the Human

         11  Rights Law.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  Thank

         13  you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Last call for

         15  questions to the administration.  Hearing none, I

         16  want to thank you very much, both of you, for being

         17  here.  Thank you for your answers and we look

         18  forward to working with you further on all these

         19  pieces of legislation.

         20                 Now we will go to our next panel.

         21  Again, we're going to try and group the panels

         22  according to the pieces of legislation to the

         23  maximum extent possible.  We ask for everyone's

         24  indulgence.  First we will look at Intro. 107A.

         25                 The first panel are people who
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          2  unfortunately have had real life experience with the

          3  issues we're talking about in 107A.  I think their

          4  testimony will be potentially the most valuable

          5  we'll hear today of any kind.  I'd like to call up

          6  three individuals.  They've asked to be identified

          7  only by first name.  Wanda, Eve and Millette, if you

          8  would come forward.

          9                 Thank you very much for being here.

         10  We really -- I can't tell you enough how important

         11  it is that you're taking this opportunity to share

         12  with us your experiences.  I also want to thank you

         13  for the spirit you bring to this.  A lot of people

         14  who have been victims of such great difficulty of

         15  course have ever right to just stay within

         16  themselves, but you're choosing to go farther and

         17  try and do something that will help others to avoid

         18  so much of the pain.  We really do appreciate you

         19  doing this.  Whoever would like to start, please go

         20  ahead.

         21                 MS. CARDONA:  My name is Evelyn

         22  Cardona.  I go by Everlasting Eve.  I'm also the

         23  Executive Director of the Coalition Against Family

         24  Violence and a survivor of domestic violence.

         25                 Twenty years ago I had to leave one
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          2  of my, several of the apartments that I had to rent

          3  because of the domestic violence that I endured

          4  through my husband.  He would climb through windows,

          5  he would break the property. So the landlord would

          6  choose to either tell me to leave or they would

          7  threaten to evict.  I would end up leaving.

          8                 Twenty years later here I am as the

          9  Executive Director of the Coalition Against Family

         10  Violence.  I've turned my life around.  I've gotten

         11  a master's in human services and I dedicate my life

         12  to empowering survivors of domestic violence.  Proof

         13  of that is that today my little girl is ten days

         14  old.  So I have a ten day old newborn at home with

         15  my new husband.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:

         17  Congratulations.

         18                 MS. CARDONA:  Thank you.  Today you

         19  will see that 20 years later -- next to me we have

         20  Warrior Wanda who lost her job, is fighting to keep

         21  her apartment to the same managing agency where she

         22  worked and now lives because of domestic violence.

         23  You will hear from Marvelous Millette who is also a

         24  person highly educated, two masters, two

         25  undergraduate degrees, working for the City of New
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          2  York, had to leave everything behind and is

          3  currently losing her loft apartment because of

          4  domestic violence.  So 20 years later we're still

          5  battling the same issues and unless this bill is

          6  passed, it's going to continue going on.

          7                 I'm going to start off with Warrior

          8  Wanda.

          9                 WANDA:  I'm a survivor of domestic

         10  violence. I'm still surviving.  They try and evict

         11  me as I speak.  We both worked in the same place.

         12  They manage the building where I live.  I went to

         13  them for help.  They didn't help me.  I fled.  I

         14  didn't know what else to do.  I took my stuff and my

         15  kids and I left to Pennsylvania.  I came back 'cause

         16  I went somewhere where I didn't know nobody.  I came

         17  back to find myself being evicted.  I didn't know

         18  where I was going to stay.  I'm still in the

         19  apartment but, like I said, as I speak, I got to go

         20  to court.  So I need this bill to be passed, not

         21  only for me.  I work now for Evelyn so there's other

         22  victims out there that need this bill.  So please,

         23  consider it.  That's all I have to say.

         24                 MILLETTE:  I've never done this

         25  before, so I have to write everything down.  My name
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          2  is Millette.  The passing of this bill is important

          3  to me and it's important to everyone.  I'm one of

          4  the lucky ones.  I don't have scars from my abuser's

          5  physical abuse, I just have a lot of broken things

          6  like furniture, dishes.  I compulsively hide knives

          7  away now.  He destroyed memento gifts, a window, a

          8  door, a toilet, my car.  He broke the basics in my

          9  home and in my life as well as those with

         10  sentimental value, but I don't have a mark on my

         11  body.  Then he slept with the neighbor and told her

         12  how I drove him to break things, shatter things, pin

         13  me down by my neck, my face, my body.  Never mind

         14  the knives he pulled out on me.  The threats and

         15  promises he made to me while I'm screaming and

         16  crying in terror and great confusion.  Told his

         17  fabricated tale of woman woes. She felt sorry for

         18  him, slept with him and has been campaigning for him

         19  ever since.

         20                 I have had three temporary orders of

         21  protection and I have been physically free from him

         22  since July 10th, 2003, but I am a shy and quiet

         23  woman.  I don't campaign -- I didn't campaign like

         24  he did or like the neighbor he slept with did, and

         25  so now I have been harassed by over half the
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          2  neighbors in my building.  Not only must I hear how

          3  disgusted he and everyone else is with me, not only

          4  must I hear that the men are terrified of me, they

          5  also said, quote, "Millette, you better be prepared

          6  to be a very tough woman because no one wants you

          7  here."

          8                 One neighbor who is still my friend

          9  believes and knows the pattern of domestic violence

         10  and abuse.  She warned me about the neighbors

         11  discussing to petition me out of the building.  I

         12  have a lot of fear and I live even more quietly than

         13  I did before.

         14                 Not only am I in physical fear of

         15  him, he gets to hang over my head a petition from

         16  the neighbors to the landlord.  If the landlord ever

         17  believes him, I will be both homeless and further in

         18  debt and my abuser wins again.

         19                 I had perfect credit before his

         20  arrest. Right after his arrest the police, the

         21  social worker -- and the social worker told me to

         22  leave town for a while because batterers always come

         23  back fresh after their arrest the next day,

         24  especially an abuser like mine.  So I left my job

         25  for one week and pleaded for them to understand,
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          2  spent $400 to change my locks and I did this in

          3  particular because one of his threats was, quote, "I

          4  promise you I will take apart every fucking thing in

          5  this loft."  I was scared to let the landlord know

          6  but I obliged myself to.  I didn't want to be blamed

          7  anymore for my batterer's destruction.

          8                 I am one of the lucky ones.  I signed

          9  a five year lease agreement one year before his

         10  arrest because I had the good credit.  Now I will be

         11  living in a place for four years where he can

         12  continue to harass me through other people.  I am

         13  one of the lucky ones.  My landlord and the

         14  management company understands that I will always --

         15  I was always the responsible person in the

         16  relationship and will continue to be the responsible

         17  person.  I will catch up on the rent he left unpaid,

         18  the bills he left behind unpaid and the large debt I

         19  have newly come into.

         20                 Think about it, educate yourselves.

         21  I am not what you see in the movies, on TV or some

         22  of the ads campaigning against domestic violence.

         23  I'm an educated woman with a master's, two

         24  undergraduate degrees.  I finished with Merit grants

         25  and scholarships.  I finished with a 3.8.
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          2  My last relationship, I excelled at hiding the abuse

          3  and carrying on with daily life, winning more Merit

          4  grants, getting professional recognition, getting

          5  published and articles written about my work.  I am

          6  not an uncommon domestic abuse survivor.

          7                 If we can excel and be responsible in

          8  spite of an abusive home, imagine what we women can

          9  do once we decide to break free.  When the community

         10  supports us simply by not partaking in the abuse, by

         11  not allowing people to remove us from our homes on

         12  conjecture, on rumor, on his words or remove us from

         13  our jobs.  If we aren't protected we will only be

         14  encouraged to stay in the relationship by

         15  compounding our fears of leaving.  You will find us,

         16  more of us in the hospital or dead.  There's where

         17  your money will go.

         18                 Please pass this bill.  Please allow

         19  us the opportunity to make our lives better and not

         20  punish us for our abusers actions and words.  If you

         21  don't, the community suffers.  More people will be

         22  vying for shelters and the abuser can further

         23  accelerate the financial debt and the abuses through

         24  neighbors, landlords and employers and every one

         25  loses because you didn't give me a chance to catch
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          2  my breath, to pay my debts.  Instead, if you don't

          3  pass this bill, I have to put all of my energies in

          4  running and hiding and pretending things didn't

          5  happen and trying to just survive without the

          6  basics.

          7                 MS. CARDONA:  With this bill, what we

          8  have found that many landlords will say that victims

          9  are endangering the welfare of their neighbors by

         10  them being allowed to stay in the apartments.  In

         11  our community, Williamsburg, what we have done is we

         12  have high propensity projects.  We work with our

         13  local precincts.  We educate our neighbors that in

         14  essence, you know, let's get rid of the batterer and

         15  let the survivor stay and empower her to become a

         16  survivor and not leave her as a victim.  So there

         17  are many ways for us to work with the community as a

         18  whole, educate them on how to keep the victim in the

         19  home.  That's it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you.  I

         21  can't tell you how powerful this testimony is.  I

         22  think if anyone in the City Council or in the

         23  administration heard what each of you have said, it

         24  would be impossible not to support this legislation.

         25    I'm very confident that our colleagues on the
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          2  Council will hear your plea.  I think one of the

          3  things that we all keep learning and why your

          4  testimony is so important and why you coming forward

          5  and giving of yourself here is so important is that

          6  this pain takes so many forms and can continue for

          7  so long.  I've spent a lot of time talking to people

          8  fighting this problem and yet that's maybe the first

          9  time I thought about something like the credit

         10  rating, which is such a profound issue everyone

         11  faces, but imagine on top of the pain to have that

         12  problem follow you as well.  That's very, very

         13  powerful and I think we can't educate people enough

         14  about just how insidious this is, how it hurts in so

         15  many ways.  I think you've really given us a lot

         16  today to help us understand better and express why

         17  this legislation is so necessary.  I want to thank

         18  all of you for what you're doing to advocate for

         19  your fellow women and to protect them by your

         20  actions.  I also want you to know that we will

         21  certainly, all of us here on the committee will work

         22  with you on the individual challenges you're facing.

         23    If there is anything we can do with your

         24  management company, we'd be happy to do that, or

         25  with the landlord of your building.  I think it's
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          2  very important that we not only try and improve our

          3  laws but also do as much as we can for each

          4  individual. Maybe sometimes people lack

          5  consciousness, but if they get the right call from

          6  the right place maybe it wakes them up a little bit

          7  to remember that people have rights and to remember

          8  who is the victim and who started all this.  This is

          9  something I'd like to offer, I'd like to put forward

         10  to you.

         11                 Council Member Yassky, the sponsor of

         12  this legislation, he really deserves the lion's

         13  share of the credit for what's being done here.  Do

         14  you have any questions or comments?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Just simply,

         16  I also, Wanda, Eve, Millette, want to thank you for

         17  sharing your experiences.  There is nothing so

         18  compelling as the fact of an individual experience

         19  to, excuse me, to help explain what government needs

         20  to do to respond.  There's really nothing I can add

         21  to your testimony other than to say that it's

         22  government's first responsibility to help people who

         23  are in need of help.  I believe we are moving toward

         24  that and I think that we're going to get there, the

         25  point where when someone in your situation comes to
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          2  the city government, you're met not with skepticism

          3  and indifference but with compassion and a desire to

          4  help.  Thank you for coming today.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you

          6  again, all of you, for what you're doing.  Eve, a

          7  special commendation, ten days after giving birth to

          8  give testimony, that's pretty amazing.  Thank you

          9  very much.  If you meet with Jackie Sherman of the

         10  Council committee afterwards for a moment, she

         11  certainly wants to make sure we follow up on the

         12  individual situations as well.  Thank you so much.

         13                 Next panel.  Again we're continuing

         14  on Intro 107A.  The next panel is Jane Randel and

         15  Larry McClure of Liz Claiborne Corporation.  We want

         16  to thank them for being here and for the work their

         17  firm is doing, very enlightening work their firm is

         18  doing.

         19                 While they're coming up, I want to

         20  welcome a member of our committee, Council Member

         21  Kendall Stewart. Thank you for being with us.

         22                 I want to say I really do appreciate

         23  your being here and I think, as we just heard, this

         24  is such a complex problem that our society still

         25  rarely understands and to have a major corporation
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          2  take a leading role to help on this is very, very

          3  important.  We want to thank you and hopefully what

          4  you say today will spread the gospel to some other

          5  firms in this city.  Go ahead.

          6                 MR. McCLURE:  We certainly hope so,

          7  Mr. Chairman.  Again, thank you for the invitation

          8  and members of the General Welfare Committee.  It's

          9  great to be here really to talk about Liz

         10  Claiborne's experiences in addressing the issue of

         11  domestic violence and the workplace.

         12                 Domestic violence is often considered

         13  to be a woman's issue but, undisputedly, it's a

         14  social issue.  As we are here today and we've

         15  certainly heard from the earlier testimony, we'd

         16  just like to give our perspective of what a bottom

         17  line issue it is for a company.

         18                 Violence in the home affects

         19  thousands of working women every day.  It impacts

         20  their ability to provide and care for themselves and

         21  their families.  It interferes with an individual's

         22  capacity to accurately and safely and securely

         23  perform their duties at work and it obviously has an

         24  adverse and disruptive effect on our morale and

         25  affects the financial strength and success of our
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          2  company as a whole.  As an employer, we believe we

          3  have a unique opportunity to provide tools and

          4  assistance and resources for employees who need

          5  them.  Though Liz Claiborne has had a domestic

          6  policy in place actually since 1991, this past year

          7  we gave it an in- depth review.  In doing so, we

          8  quickly realized that while the words were there on

          9  paper we needed to update our language and really do

         10  more to adequately support our employees.

         11                 Using the existing materials that we

         12  had as a starting point we reached out to domestic

         13  violence experts and organizations from around the

         14  movement to help us revise our policy and our best

         15  practices.  This included the formation of a

         16  domestic violence response team or DVRT, which is a

         17  committee comprised of representatives from legal

         18  security and human resources.  This DVRT reviews

         19  each case that affects or has the potential to

         20  affect our workplace in terms of security and

         21  performance and helps us determine the appropriate

         22  course of action in the best action first and

         23  foremost of the associate or employee, but then for

         24  the company.

         25                 After updating our policy and
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          2  protocols we then retrained our Human Resources,

          3  Security and Legal Departments on both the issues

          4  and the policies.  So it was important not only to

          5  get policies straight but also the awareness of what

          6  effect that has on the community.

          7                 We also provided them with new

          8  definitions of what their expected roles and

          9  responsibilities were in this regard.  Knowing that

         10  we needed to have these tools in place to handle the

         11  calls once they started coming, we then began our

         12  communication efforts through our training.

         13                 Through internal communications we

         14  included presentations at our divisional town

         15  meetings, postings on our intranet and small group

         16  sessions with managers.  As expected, the number of

         17  reported incidents jumped dramatically.

         18  Specifically just this year we've had 25 reported

         19  cases of associates within the United States. While

         20  this may not seem a lot for a corporation that has

         21  over 14,000 associates worldwide, there were no

         22  reported cases the year before.  So I would say to

         23  you on a personal note if you take protocol and

         24  policy and put it with awareness, then you have a

         25  better working formula.
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          2                 Importantly, our efforts have alerted

          3  employees as to their responsibilities to

          4  communicate with us so that we can be better

          5  prepared in the event of any kind of on- site

          6  trouble.  I would add that we've heard from our

          7  associates in Europe and Asia that while there are

          8  certainly cultural differences there, there's

          9  increased awareness and interest in this policy

         10  which we've spread worldwide.  This has proved to be

         11  invaluable and I'll share one example to highlight

         12  that.  This spring at one of our facilities a

         13  potentially fatal situation was avoided because our

         14  security officers knew that an employee had an order

         15  of protection against her husband.  When her husband

         16  arrived at the gates to the property he was turned

         17  away and when he began threatening violence which

         18  included murder the local police were called.  The

         19  workplace was locked down, the employee was located

         20  and made safe.  Her estranged husband fled from our

         21  gates but was later caught after several hours of an

         22  armed standoff.  As you can imagine, we collectively

         23  shudder to think about what could have been and we

         24  certainly applauded that employee for empowering us

         25  with the information we needed to help her.
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          2                 This was an extreme case but we

          3  certainly learned a lot from it.             Most of

          4  the time we're able to help without the trauma of

          5  that which we experienced that day. So when an

          6  employee comes forward and asks for assistance,

          7  there are a number of things we can do and have done

          8  to help that person feel safe.  For example, we've

          9  provided our employee assistance hotline and various

         10  city agency numbers that assist in domestic violence

         11  matters.  We've escorted employees to public

         12  transportation or provided taxi service. We've

         13  assigned secure parking lots with camera

         14  surveillance, contacted local police when there are

         15  certain situations and accompanied our associates to

         16  the police stations to file domestic violence

         17  reports.  We've issued dedicated 911 cell phones to

         18  our associates and used a security hotline to

         19  confirm that an employee has arrived home safely.

         20  We've changed business phone numbers to help

         21  eliminate harassing calls, relocated employee work

         22  stations and facilities, followed up on restraining

         23  orders that are provided to security and conducted

         24  security and safety assessments for employees in

         25  need.  In extreme cases we've also provided hotel
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          2  rooms for associates to bridge that gap that they so

          3  desperately need.

          4                 These represent our standard

          5  responses to a call for assistance but in general I

          6  will tell you that we found most of these incidents

          7  need to be handled on a case by- case basis and

          8  we're prepared to do just that. Principally our role

          9  is as a conduit to the plethora of domestic violence

         10  resources in and around New York City and in the

         11  country.  We are not trained counselors and we do

         12  not dispense advice but instead we support our

         13  employees and let them know that they are not alone

         14  and do not deserve to live in fear.

         15                 I'm fortunate not to have experienced

         16  domestic violence in my life.  I have however

         17  experienced workplace violence firsthand, but I do

         18  not pretend to have any of the experiences that

         19  we've heard in early testimony and the courage that

         20  it takes to overcome them.  But like all of us, I

         21  think we've experienced the dread of not feeling

         22  safe in our homes and after 9/11 we're all victims

         23  of domestic violence in a way and we felt the fear

         24  that these women live with every day.  The

         25  uncertainty of what lies ahead, the anxiety at work
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          2  and home and the constant feeling that there's

          3  nothing you can do to stop it.  The parallel is

          4  inexact but the feelings are strikingly similar.

          5                 Fortunately, businesses like ours are

          6  in a position to do something to help stop violence

          7  at home.  Liz Claiborne is a large company but much

          8  of what we've outlined this morning is not exclusive

          9  to the Fortune 500 and it is not expensive.  Where

         10  an organization does not have in- house security,

         11  the police and local community agencies are a great

         12  resource.  If you don't have an employee assistance

         13  program, local domestic violence agencies may be

         14  able to lend a hand and in our experience have been

         15  just terrific.

         16  You have no money for collateral or for materials,

         17  posters and brochures listing both local and

         18  national hotline numbers are available and free of

         19  charge.

         20                 The goal is simple. To create an

         21  environment of support within the workplace so that

         22  employees who need help know that they have an ally.

         23    The resources are out there.  Businesses just need

         24  to understand that it is worth it to look for those

         25  resources.  Knowing that domestic violence increases
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          2  absenteeism and health care costs and decreases

          3  productivity, we often wonder why they can't afford

          4  not to.  Thank you very much.  I would certainly

          5  take any questions you might have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  I say in the

          7  most positive sense, that is shockingly enlightened.

          8    I rarely heard a government agency or a non-

          9  profit or a corporation provide such a clear vision

         10  of how to deal with the problem. I think it's very

         11  important that you're telling us all that this can

         12  be done in a way that is consistent with the mission

         13  of the business and not financially overburdensome,

         14  but I also note that you obviously have stretched to

         15  make this enough of a priority that when you were

         16  called upon to make some accommodations or to spend

         17  some money, that you considered it part of what your

         18  firm was all about.  I think that's very, very

         19  powerful and the idea that -- I don't think I need

         20  to tell you this, but I will, that maybe your policy

         21  already has saved at least one life from the

         22  incident you described.  I think all of us in public

         23  service hope the work we're doing improves lives and

         24  maybe even sometimes averts something very negative.

         25    I think you can say right now that you know you've
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          2  already done that, and that's extraordinarily

          3  powerful and we need to get the message of your work

          4  out.

          5                 Council Member Yassky or any other of

          6  my colleagues have any questions or comments?

          7                 PARTICIPANT: (Not identified for the

          8  record.) I just wish that you made men's clothing so

          9  that I could patronize your --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Your wife.

         11                 MR. McCLURE:  We do.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Very good

         13  idea, Council Member Quinn.  Thank you.  There must

         14  be a birthday coming up soon.  I join with Chair

         15  DeBlasio in commending you.  I guess my only

         16  question would be and that was just a very, very

         17  impressive presentation.  I guess the underlying

         18  facts are even more impressive.  Do you find that

         19  your employees and when you made these --

         20  implemented these policies, did your employees

         21  respond by saying, "Oh, this is -- that people are

         22  getting special treatment," or did they understand

         23  how valuable and important this is and they're happy

         24  to be part of a company that behaves the way you do?

         25                 MR. McCLURE:  Not in the least.  I
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          2  think any time there's an individual situation

          3  that's brought into the workplace it affects

          4  everyone and we've not experienced one situation

          5  where someone says that's somebody else's problem

          6  they need to take care of someplace else.  It's

          7  real, it's happening right where we are every day,

          8  so I think there's an awareness and an understanding

          9  that that is part of our duty, to help.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  I know those

         11  of us who are out in our communities every day know

         12  that people want to do the right thing and when

         13  there's leadership that points in that direction,

         14  they are just all too happy -- they're just

         15  delighted to be part of an effort like that.  I

         16  again, commend you for what you've done.  Thank you,

         17  Chair DeBlasio.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Just one other

         19  follow up point on what Council Member Yassky was

         20  raising.  Do you find that it is, even though you're

         21  doing everything conceivable here to make the

         22  options available to folks, we all know that we're

         23  fighting so many fronts in this war because one of

         24  the most difficult aspects is for how they feel

         25  comfortable coming forward with their problem and
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          2  knowing that there are so many potential pitfalls to

          3  that and the way they'll be regarded.  Again, that's

          4  part of what we hope this legislation starts to

          5  change, the culture of that.  Do you find that there

          6  are still employees despite all this facilitation

          7  who are not coming forward or don't come forward for

          8  an extended period of time?  And how do you try and

          9  learn from that to try and make it as easy or as

         10  confidential or conducive as possible?

         11                 MR. McCLURE:  I'll try to be clear in

         12  my answer, but one thing that is really fresh in my

         13  mind and that of the senior executives of the

         14  company, my boss, the CEO and the senior executives

         15  spent yesterday at a Safe Horizon House with

         16  obviously survivors and victims of domestic

         17  violence, both women and children.  One of the

         18  chilling statistics that we heard was that usually

         19  there are, on average, seven events or seven times

         20  that someone is abused before they actually come

         21  forward.  So it would be certainly naive of us to

         22  assume that the first time there is an incident

         23  someone comes and tell us.  We're sure that we have

         24  really just kind of tapped the surface of this issue

         25  and hopefully have put in place things that raise
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          2  the awareness.

          3                 I would add that in addition to that

          4  in our protocols we -- and in our training, we've

          5  issued signs to look for, so signs that managers and

          6  our associates and our human resources and security

          7  professionals can look for that allow us in

          8  obviously a delicate and a very private way to speak

          9  with an individual if we think there's an issue that

         10  may be affecting them in the workplace.  So there's

         11  much more that we can do.  We try to build in some

         12  things in our training that help people who may not

         13  experience it but may be noticing something unusual

         14  in the workplace to address it in that way.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Again, your

         16  efforts have been extraordinary and what is so much

         17  of a concern here is, again, you're doing as much as

         18  we can understand of the world of how to address

         19  such a complex problem.  You're doing just about

         20  everything right here and still, as you said, 25

         21  incidents reported across the firm this last year.

         22  By the same point you made before who knows how many

         23  more have not yet been reported.  So one firm alone,

         24  you know, we could be talking about a hundred or

         25  more, who knows how many people at any given point
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          2  could be experiencing this horrible problem.  I just

          3  think it's so important to people understanding this

          4  law to realize, the point we were trying to make

          5  earlier when the Human Rights Commission was here,

          6  that you could put in every protection and you can

          7  do everything to educate the public and you still

          8  have a long way to go.  It has to get to the level

          9  of each firm and each institution in our society.

         10                 One other question.  It seems to me

         11  as we've seen with the Homeland Security front that

         12  you could do a lot to educate security personnel

         13  about what to look for and still a lot, and no

         14  disrespect to security personnel, still a lot can

         15  happen and get through the filter, if you will. So

         16  it's extraordinary to me that the incident you

         17  described,

         18  that you educate your security personnel about a

         19  specific threat and when the batterer arrived at the

         20  location, it sounds like your personnel did

         21  everything right in terms of immediately recognizing

         22  this was that person stopping them from going in,

         23  calling the police, et cetera.

         24                 I guess what I'm trying to learn from

         25  that is what did you do, do you think, to raise the
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          2  awareness level to that point.  Because let's be

          3  clear, I think at any given day in New York City a

          4  security person could have gotten a memo saying look

          5  out for this type of person and they either glanced

          6  at it or didn't get around to reading it or read it

          7  and forgot it and a tragedy could have occurred.

          8  Again, no ill will on their part.  Why do you think

          9  you were successful in getting the person to that

         10  point that they could execute the plan so well?

         11                 MS. RANDEL:  In truth we have a very

         12  enlightened security department.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  A very?

         14                 MS. RANDEL:  Enlightened security

         15  department. I mean I have said for years that our

         16  security is top notch and they've always been

         17  incredibly supportive on this issue. In fact, the

         18  example that Larry mentioned about the hotel room

         19  was a number of years ago, even before we started

         20  pushing all of this stuff even further, and so they

         21  were just doing what they need to do to keep the

         22  associate safe. We have just a crack security

         23  department.  I wish everyone were as lucky, but that

         24  is in truth a big part of it for us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  And how
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          2  specifically

          3   -- I mean obviously they're high quality, but how

          4  did they get it down to the individual security

          5  guard, for them to understand that by them stepping

          6  forward they literally could be savings someone's

          7  life?

          8                 MR. McCLURE:  Well, the easiest way

          9  is this gets me past the door.  If I don't have it,

         10  I can't get in. So if someone comes as a visitor in

         11  any way, shape or form, they are obviously trained

         12  to inquire what's the purpose of your visit, who are

         13  you here to see and if you couple that with the fact

         14  that when we get a protection order, they have that

         15  in hand and they're able to match that up so they

         16  would do a scan right there at the checkpoint to

         17  say, "Well, I'm sorry, you're not permitted on the

         18  property" or whatever the situation is, and "I'm

         19  going to please ask you to leave."

         20                 First of all, I think as an overall

         21  security measure we have these kinds of things that

         22  let you in and beyond that, again, I'd have to

         23  second Jane's point that we spend an awful lot of

         24  time making sure that they are just informed and

         25  aware and in touch with our associates as they come
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          2  and go in the workplace.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Exceptional.

          4  Council Member Kendall Stewart.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chair.  I applaud you for implementing these

          7  policies, but I didn't get a picture how many

          8  employees do you have.

          9                 MR. McCLURE:  We have over 14,000

         10  worldwide, about one- third of which are outside the

         11  United States.  So in the greater metropolitan New

         12  York area there are roughly 6,000 associates with

         13  Liz Claiborne.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So --

         15                 MR. McCLURE:  We have also, excuse

         16  me, we have distribution facilities throughout the

         17  country and other operations on the west coast.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  What would

         19  be the difference if you had a smaller company,

         20  let's 20, 35 employees, from what you're doing?

         21                 MR. McCLURE:  I would say the major

         22  difference would be taking advantage of some of the

         23  public agencies and public hotlines.  So that

         24  obviously we enjoy the luxury if you will of having

         25  an infrastructure and a security force as Jane
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          2  described and a human resources and legal team that

          3  can help with this.  So if you don't have that sort

          4  of scope and depth of a large corporation I would

          5  encourage people to work with the local agencies

          6  that we've found to be just tremendously helpful

          7  And again, they have promotional materials,

          8  communicating materials as well as self- help kinds

          9  of materials that I think can inform and enlighten

         10  an organization and it doesn't need the kind of

         11  staff that again we enjoy.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you

         13  again. Thank you very much for being with us.  It's

         14  very, very helpful testimony and we look forward to

         15  working with you further and we're going to tell

         16  people to come to the mountain top here and hear

         17  from you about what you're doing.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 MR. McCLURE:  If they could come shop

         20  as well we'd appreciate it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  We'll do that,

         22  too. We'll make a rare exception and encourage

         23  particular shopping patterns.

         24                 Our next panel, I appreciate

         25  everyone's patience, we've covered a lot of ground
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          2  today.  Our next panel, Laurel Eisner, Wendy Weiser

          3   -- I hope I'm saying that right -- and Carolyn

          4  Kubitschek.  I know Ms. Eisner in particular has a

          5  time constraint so we'd like her to lead off.  Thank

          6  you for your patience.  Thank you, everyone, for

          7  being here.  Laurel, go ahead.

          8                 MS. EISNER:  Let me just say that my

          9  written testimony will be supplemented with

         10  reactions and comments on the amendments.  The 107A

         11  I hadn't seen it until this morning and so what I'm

         12  going to talk about today is just some issues around

         13  those amendments, which I think perhaps will be

         14  helpful.

         15                 Just a little introduction.  I'm the

         16  Executive Director of Sanctuary for Families, a

         17  social service and advocacy organization dedicated

         18  to helping survivors, victims and survivors of

         19  domestic violence.  We serve over 8,000 women and

         20  children each year.  We are in seven locations.  We

         21  run 200 shelter beds and we do crisis and

         22  transitional housing, individual and group

         23  counseling, a great deal of legal advice and

         24  representation, hot line assistance, housing and

         25  benefits assistance, post- shelter assistance and a
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          2  specialized program for the children of domestic

          3  violence victims.

          4                 I'm really very pleased to see the

          5  amendments in 107A and I just want to say as a

          6  preface that I applaud the committee and Council

          7  Member Yassky in particular for taking Local Law 1

          8  of 2001 and enhancing it and strengthening it and

          9  filling it out and making it a much more effective

         10  and useful tool.  When the Council passed that bill

         11  in 2001 protecting domestic violence victims under

         12  the Human Rights Law in employment matters, New York

         13  City was the first city in the country to do this,

         14  the first locality in the country.  There were some

         15  state laws, but nothing -- so it's wonderful to see

         16  this enhanced and made more complex and more

         17  appropriate to the problems.

         18                 Let me just say a couple things first

         19  about the housing, the changes in the housing and

         20  the issue about breaking leases.  The three women

         21  who spoke here talked about the devastation of being

         22  threatened with eviction when it is the batterer

         23  rather than they who have caused the problems.

         24                 At Sanctuary for Families we work

         25  with very many women who we are trying to place in
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          2  housing.  After they have fled the batterer, they've

          3  gone into shelter, now what do they do.  They could

          4  only stay in shelter which is funded by the city and

          5  state for a short period of time. We're living in a

          6  city where affordable housing is very hard to come

          7  by if you have left everything behind including your

          8  bed, the children's beds, the linens, the pots and

          9  pans and everything that made your life work 'cause

         10  you ran to shelter with your children in hand and a

         11  few shopping bags.

         12  You have to build your life all over again in a new

         13  place and if you face housing discrimination where

         14  you go to looking for a house, you are really in

         15  trouble.

         16                 Imagine, she's had all the courage it

         17  takes to get away, to leave what she had, to wrench

         18  her children away from family and from schools and

         19  put them into a shelter where they can't bring

         20  friends home and where they have to go into a new

         21  school and they're in a confidential location.  She

         22  starts her hunt for a new job and a new house.  She

         23  finds an apartment and a landlord says well, I don't

         24  know, figures it out.  What does she do now?  She

         25  can't go back and stay in shelter because the days
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          2  are limited by regulation and by the money.  Where

          3  does she go? Does she go back to the batterer?  She

          4  can go to the EAU and that is in fact what's

          5  happening to a number of women.

          6                 It takes -- we just did a survey of

          7  the Coalition of Residential Providers for Domestic

          8  Violence Shelter.  We just did a survey over six

          9  months.  It takes an average of 170 days to find an

         10  apartment.  If when you -- you can only stay in

         11  shelter for 135 days.  You find that apartment.  It

         12  then has to be certified by the -- there are all

         13  kinds of complications under Section 8, but if you

         14  have a problem with the landlord saying well, I

         15  don't know.  And we've had a number of instances

         16  where a landlord obviously, perhaps innocently, but

         17  out of ignorance about who a domestic violence

         18  victim is, says things that are really quite amazing

         19  like "Well, lights have to be out by 11:00." You

         20  know, these are women who have, as you heard, have

         21  been powering in the face of the risk of violence

         22  and the notion that you know they're coming here to

         23  party is really -- really it is not understanding

         24  who these people are.  One broker actually said to

         25  our housing coordinator, "Oh, domestic violence
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          2  victims throw parties for weeks at a time, they have

          3  orgies."  You know, I don't know what world he was

          4  living in.  So that's that issue and this law will

          5  be extremely important to protect our women against

          6  that.

          7                 Let me talk about the issue of

          8  allowing a woman to break a lease.  I would say in

          9  our agency that is probably one of our biggest

         10  problems.  Out of shelter, trying to get -- perhaps

         11  on public assistance if they're eligible, or their

         12  children were born in the United States and they

         13  weren't, so their children are eligible. They have

         14  to put their lives together.  They have to get

         15  enough money to make a go of it.  Their credit is

         16  completely destroyed by the fact that they are still

         17  on a lease somewhere which they had to run away

         18  from.  If the batterer's still there, and there are

         19  many things to be said about other ways of dealing

         20  with this issue by getting the batterer out instead

         21  of her, but where we are now is with women who for

         22  the most part leave.  Once they've left that debt

         23  and that lease may follow them and interfere with

         24  their ability to enter into a new lease.  This is a

         25  wonderful remedy which would be effective
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          2  immediately for so many of our clients.  So I just

          3  wanted to say that we're very pleased to see that.

          4                 Let me just say now briefly 'cause I

          5  know it's a long morning, talk very briefly about

          6  the reasonable accommodation provision for the

          7  housing aspect of this bill, and that is here to --

          8  it is -- I mean we agree with this. It's important

          9  to have a definition of -- I'm sorry, let me see if

         10  I said this clearly -- about the certification.

         11  That's the piece that I wanted to talk about.  It is

         12  obviously important if you are going to be an

         13  individual who gets certain privileges under a law

         14  because you're part of anew category, a protected

         15  class, it is important that you provide some

         16  evidence that you're a member of that class

         17  obviously.

         18                 Our one concern is that the

         19  certification, the alternatives be reasonably

         20  interpreted by those who enforce this.  If an

         21  individual has not gone for an order of protection

         22  and orders of protection are sometimes the most

         23  dangerous thing a woman can do.  Once she goes to

         24  Family Court she can get an order of protection but

         25  the batterer has a right to notice, he has a right
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          2  to come to a hearing. Very often he will then follow

          3  her, sue for custody and we go on for years with

          4  legal battles over that.  So sometimes an order of

          5  protection is life threatening for her.

          6                 That's one reason that it's very

          7  important for the certification to be able to be

          8  done by an agency like ours that works with the

          9  woman.  And trust us we see thousands every year.

         10  We don't keep a woman and work with her if she's not

         11  really a domestic violence victim.  We figure it out

         12  pretty quickly.  If she can certify herself, which

         13  she may be able to do, if she's not English speaking

         14  and in this city with what, 38% of the population

         15  foreign born, many of the victims are not English

         16  speaking.  At our agency we are now able to work

         17  with victims in 18 different languages.  18.  We

         18  just added one for languages from women from East

         19  Timor.  It's extraordinary the range of languages

         20  and many of them don't speak English and would not

         21  ever go to the police.  The police, whoa, this is

         22  not where we would go in the country that we came

         23  from, what the women say.

         24                 So the certification provision I

         25  think the way it's drafted could be very -- could
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          2  work well but it must be interpreted so that it

          3  protects women in that circumstance.  You know, in

          4  some -- let me just thank you and applaud you for

          5  working on this.  I think it's terrific and I hope

          6  that this bill will pass.  Anything we can do with

          7  our enormous really, frankly, breadth of knowledge

          8  and experience with a wide range of women facing

          9  these problems, we would be more than happy to

         10  provide.

         11

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you very

         13  much, Laurel.  Again, we apologize that we kept you

         14  so long but we very much appreciate your taking the

         15  time.  Wendy, would you like to go ahead?

         16                 MS. WEISER:  Good morning or good

         17  afternoon now, Council members.  Thank you again for

         18  the opportunity to testify today in support of

         19  Intro. 107A.  Again, my name is Wendy Weiser and I'm

         20  an attorney at the NOW Legal Defense and Education

         21  Fund.  NOW Legal Defense is a national civil rights

         22  organization that has been working for more than 30

         23  years to define and defend women's rights.  Our

         24  major goals include ending violence against women

         25  and eliminating barriers to women's economic
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          2  opportunities.  Intro. 107 serves both of these

          3  goals and we strongly urge the Council to support

          4  it.

          5                 I'm going to focus my remarks today

          6  on the reasonable accommodations and employment

          7  provisions and also direct your attention to some

          8  practical solutions in the booklet that I circulated

          9  in my written testimony.

         10                 When an employee suffers from

         11  domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking, she

         12  may need certain accommodations from her employer to

         13  ensure that she can address her pressing security

         14  and health issues while remaining a productive

         15  employee.  For example, she may need to mess work to

         16  treat her injuries, to go to court to obtain a

         17  protective order against her abuser or stalker to

         18  find a new home or shelter or to take other measures

         19  to ensure her safety and that of her children.

         20  Currently many employers do not allow victims to

         21  take such leave and even fire them when they do.

         22                 Intro. 107 will redress this

         23  injustice by requiring employers to make reasonable

         24  accommodations to victims.  Based on our experience

         25  of assisting survivors and working with companies
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          2  who would like to do the right thing, the types of

          3  accommodations employees in this situation generally

          4  seek are a request for limited time off to go to

          5  court, obtain health services or obtain other

          6  emergency services.  A request that the employer

          7  change the employee's phone extension or route calls

          8  through a receptionist to stop phone harassment.

          9  Where a batterer or stalker has threatened to come

         10  to the workplace, a request that the employer

         11  register a copy of the employee's protective order

         12  with security staff or, where applicable, to

         13  transfer the employee to another shift or jobsite.

         14  Without these accommodations and without assurances

         15  that an employer will not penalize an employee for

         16  requesting or taking them, an employee may face the

         17  terrible choice between taking the steps necessary

         18  to protect herself and her health and losing her

         19  job.  The reasonable accommodations provisions in

         20  Intro. 107 will help employees keep their jobs while

         21  addressing those needs.

         22                 Intro. 107 will not add significant

         23  burdens on employers.  Most of these accommodations

         24  are low or no cost.  Intro. 107 doesn't require

         25  employers to grant accommodations that would
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          2  constitute an undue hardship to the employer or that

          3  would not enable an employee to satisfy the

          4  essential requisites of the job.

          5                 Even without Intro. 107 employers are

          6  already affected by domestic violence, sexual

          7  assaults and stalking.  A staggering number of

          8  workers in New York suffer from these crimes.

          9  Studies show that in most cases the violence follows

         10  the employee to work, both directly through

         11  workplace attacks and harassment, and indirectly by

         12  affecting work performance. So this already costs

         13  U.S. Employers billions of dollars a year.

         14  Reasonable accommodations will help prevent the

         15  recurrence of these costly crimes by enabling

         16  victims to do what is necessary to protect

         17  themselves.

         18                 Companies that take the small steps

         19  necessary to help their employees address domestic

         20  violence, sexual assault and stalking, improve

         21  employee productivity and retention, as we've heard,

         22  and save the expense of hiring and training new

         23  employees.  More and more employers like Liz

         24  Claiborne and also American Express, Verizon,

         25  Greenberg Traurig (phonetic) and others are
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          2  realizing this and are voluntarily adopting policies

          3  of providing reasonable accommodations.

          4                 Perhaps most importantly Intro. 107

          5  helps women who experience domestic violence, sexual

          6  assault and stalking keep their jobs.  Victims need

          7  economic security to escape from their abusers and

          8  find safety.  Victims who lose their jobs find it

          9  much more difficult to achieve the economic and

         10  dependence from their abusers and are therefore much

         11  more likely to return to their abusers.  Others wind

         12  up in a cycle of poverty that can lead to

         13  homelessness or welfare dependence.  On the other

         14  hand, victims who do keep their jobs find it easier

         15  to achieve safety, health, dignity, self-

         16  sufficiency and independence from their batterers.

         17  So making a reasonable accommodation for an employee

         18  who experiences domestic violence, sexual assault or

         19  stalking can make a huge difference.  It can even

         20  save her life.

         21                 So we congratulate the Council for

         22  taking the important step of introducing Intro. 107

         23  and we urge you to adopt it.  Ensuring that victims

         24  get the reasonable accommodations they need from

         25  their employees is simply the right thing to do.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you very

          4  much. Carolyn.

          5                 MS. KUBITSCHEK:   Thank you.  Good

          6  afternoon, Chairman DeBlasio, members of the

          7  Council.  Thank you for letting me speak today.  I'm

          8  an attorney with the law firm of Lansner &

          9  Kubitschek.  We represent victims of domestic

         10  violence and in particular we handle the class

         11  action lawsuit Nicholson against Scoppetta, co

         12  counseling with Sanctuary for Families Center for

         13  Battered Women's Legal Services.

         14                 Many of my clients face the type of

         15  housing discrimination that Intro. 107A is designed

         16  to prohibit. They're forced out of their homes

         17  invariably on very short notice because they are

         18  victims of domestic violence.  The discrimination

         19  against these women, however, is not perpetrated by

         20  their landlords, but by the New York City

         21  Administration for Children's Services.  Under the

         22  guise of protecting children, ACS threatens to

         23  remove children from their battered mothers unless

         24  the women go into shelter immediately, and ACS does

         25  this routinely without holding the batterers
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          2  accountable and without determining whether the

          3  women and the children can remain in their apartment

          4  safely if some other measures are taken.  Sometimes

          5  as simple as just changing the locks on the doors.

          6  While the mother and the children are living in

          7  cramped conditions in a shelter, the batterer is

          8  enjoying undisturbed possession of the apartment

          9  that his victims were forced to vacate  And ACS, by

         10  oversight or by design, is acting as the real estate

         11  agent for the batterers.

         12                 My written testimony describes the

         13  ordeal that several of my individual clients have

         14  had to go through and I don't need to repeat it

         15  here.

         16                 I just want to talk about, briefly

         17  about one woman whose story is quite typical and

         18  that's Miss T., a school teacher with two young

         19  children, two girls ages 11 months and five years

         20  old.  When the children's father, who lived with

         21  her, began battering her she went to the police to

         22  seek assistance and, unfortunately, she reached a

         23  police officer who was not yet very enlightened.

         24  The police sent her back home but they did call the

         25  child abuse hotline and an ACS case worker came out
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          2  to the home and told Miss T. That she and the

          3  children would have to leave immediately and go into

          4  shelter and if she didn't leave with the children

          5  they would arrest her and take the children to

          6  foster care.  She didn't think that she had much

          7  choice in the situation and so she left and ACS

          8  transported her not to a domestic violence shelter

          9  but to the Emergency Assistance Unit in the Bronx of

         10  which so much has been written.  She and the two

         11  little girls were shuttled around in various

         12  overnight placements and then various temporary

         13  placements for a ten- month period.

         14                 Now, in the middle of all of this she

         15  actually managed to get to the Family Court and get

         16  an order of protection against the batterer, but ACS

         17  still refused to let her return to the apartment.

         18  She lost her job because

         19   -- as a school teacher because she was transferred

         20  to so many locations over this period of time and

         21  the batterer got the very nice apartment in

         22  Manhattan where, as far as we know, he still lives

         23  today.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Carolyn, I'm

         25  sorry, in the interest of time we'd just like to ask
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          2  you to summarize 'cause we have a number of

          3  witnesses coming up.

          4                 MS. KUBITSCHEK:  Yes.  I'm looking at

          5  particularly Section 4 of Intro. 107A because that

          6  prohibits discrimination against domestic violence

          7  victims in public accommodations.  In the past I

          8  have had clients, women, who have been able to take

          9  advantage of this section in making complaints about

         10  discrimination in the provision of child welfare

         11  services.  I believe that extending the law to

         12  include housing discrimination will give these

         13  battered women some kind of recourse when they are

         14  forced to vacate their apartments and, therefore, I

         15  urge the Council to enact the proposal.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you very

         17  much. Any of my colleagues have questions?  Council

         18  Member Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I don't have

         20  as much a question, more just a statement, something

         21  to add.  I just wanted to add to.  When Ms. Eisner

         22  was testifying she talked about the various reasons

         23  why an order of protection isn't the appropriate

         24  threshold or way that somebody should have to prove

         25  that they're in a domestic violence situation.  I
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          2  just wanted to underscore that and add to that that

          3  if that was to be the level of proof, it's

          4  particularly burdensome for LGBT people who are in

          5  domestic violence situations since, to somewhat

          6  harken back to the earlier conversations, since we

          7  don't have family -- standing in Family Courts

          8  because that's a state jurisdictional issue, we have

          9  to go to Criminal Court to get an order of

         10  protection and as difficult as that can sometimes be

         11  in Family Court, it is almost always harder and a

         12  higher burden of proof in Criminal Court.  So I

         13  think that in addition to the reasons that have been

         14  laid out why that shouldn't be the definition and

         15  what is in Council Member Yassky's bill is a better

         16  way to do it.  I just wanted to add that as another

         17  benefit that this bill will have to another segment

         18  of New York City residents.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you very

         20  much. We really appreciate your testimony very much.

         21    Okay.  That concludes the segment on 107A.  We, as

         22  everyone knows, have several other pieces of

         23  legislation.  We're now going to turn to Intro. 439.

         24    We have two witnesses I'd like to call up

         25  together, Craig Gurian and Herbert Eisenberg.  I
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          2  want to, especially since we have after this piece

          3  of legislation testimony on two others, I'm going to

          4  be more careful about time from this point on or my

          5  colleagues will kill me.  I want to ask that

          6  everything, that people put it in writing, will go

          7  into the formal record.  So what will help this

          8  committee is if people would summarize their

          9  testimony and that will allow for more opportunity

         10  for question and answer.  Who would like to start?

         11  Go ahead.

         12                 MR. GURIAN:  Good morning, Mr.

         13  Chairman, members of the committee.  My name is

         14  Craig Gurian.  I'm Executive Director of the Anti-

         15  Discrimination Center of Metro New York.  I was the

         16  principal drafter for the Human Rights Commission of

         17  the comprehensive 1991 amendments to the Human

         18  Rights Law.  I teach anti- discrimination courses at

         19  Fordham Law School and I was the author of the

         20  center's recently released report on the city's

         21  continuing failure to enforce the Human Rights Law

         22  properly, copies of which are available today.

         23                 I'm going to take a very, very brief

         24  tour into history, which is important, particularly

         25  given the question that Council Member Quinn raised
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          2  earlier today on the where is the commission on all

          3  of this stuff.  When the Council, this committee was

          4  the originator, when the Council amended the law in

          5  1991 it effected literally dozens of changes in the

          6  Human Rights Law, but those changes can be

          7  summarized or boiled down to a handful of

          8  principles.

          9                 First, maximize coverage.  The idea

         10  was that discrimination should play no role.

         11                 Second, maximize deterrence.  It was

         12  a reflection of the understanding that traditional

         13  methods of law enforcement are and ought to be used

         14  in the civil rights context.  Just as cities don't

         15  rely on saying pretty please to stop people from

         16  engaging in burglary or robbery, so to a city can't

         17  rely on universal good will to stop discrimination.

         18                 Third, minimize evasion.  Resist

         19  attempts to feign ignorance of the requirements of

         20  the law.

         21                 Fourth, always compensate victims of

         22  discrimination fully.  Not like the commission said

         23  earlier today 84 of some 300 cases were the only

         24  ones where people got any monetary value at all.

         25                 Fifth, develop multiple means to
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          2  enforce the law.

          3                 I think that Council members,

          4  committee members here and other members of the

          5  Council have tended to focus on the fact that

          6  there's a city Human Rights Commission and people

          7  have bemoaned it for a long period of time, but

          8  there are actually two other very important

          9  enforcement mechanisms.  One is the Law Department

         10  which has explicit authority to bring pattern and

         11  practice claims in court.  It hasn't done so.  And

         12  the third, giving individuals the option to file in

         13  court.

         14                 The last principle and at least as

         15  important as any other, and which the testimony of

         16  the commission personnel demonstrated that they

         17  don't understand unfortunately, is that the city law

         18  be interpreted independently of its state and

         19  federal counterparts and be interpreted liberally to

         20  accomplish its purposes.  It's been a dozen years

         21  since 1991.  We can see there's a lot more work to

         22  be done as detailed in our report and neither the

         23  Law Department nor the commission is doing what it

         24  needs to be doing.

         25                 In terms of the private right of
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          2  action, people have been using that method but

          3  because of the frequent refusal of state and federal

          4  judges to realize that the city law is an

          5  independent law and is supposed to be interpreted

          6  liberally, it's very, very easy for a judge, instead

          7  of doing the independent analysis, to just drop a

          8  footnote and says the city Human Rights Law is

          9  interpreted just like anything else.

         10                 Intro. 439, while it does have some

         11  features relating to the commission, is much more

         12  focused on the ability of people to go into court

         13  and vindicate the Human Rights Law whether or not

         14  the commission itself is doing a good job.  It does

         15  this in two basic ways:  One is by spelling out the

         16  fact that the state and federal law is a floor below

         17  which the city law cannot fall, not a ceiling above

         18  which the city cannot rise.

         19                 While specific restorations made in

         20  the bill are important -- I'll talk about them in a

         21  moment -- the most significant is the reassertion of

         22  independent and liberal construction.

         23                 That's because, while we can

         24  anticipate that judges will continue to try to chip

         25  away at the protections of the city Human Rights
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          2  Law, we can't predict today all the ways that

          3  they're going to do that.  Until this spring, for

          4  example, no one would have guessed that there was

          5  any question but that the city Human Rights Law

          6  makes individuals liable for their own

          7  discriminatory acts.  The text of the law provides

          8  for it, legislative history does, but recently a

          9  panel of the First Department said we don't think it

         10  could mean that and that case is now on appeal.

         11  Until the Supreme Court's decision in the

         12  Buckhannon case, the federal rule had been for

         13  decades that when a civil rights organization

         14  successfully forced a change in a discriminatory

         15  practice, what's called a catalyst case, the

         16  organization was able to recover its attorney's

         17  fees.  Then 5 to 4, the right vanished under federal

         18  law in circumstances where the change wasn't made as

         19  a result of a court order or the equivalent.

         20                 So what happens, and please

         21  understand, the statement that was made by

         22  commission staff this morning was a radical change

         23   -- a little slight change in course -- it was a

         24  radical change to say we want to rely on state and

         25  federal law.  What that means is that regardless of
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          2  what this Council does, our law will always be

          3  ratcheted down when the Supreme Court comes out with

          4  a decision cutting back on rights of people with

          5  disabilities next week? Nothing left for us here and

          6  we can't do that.

          7                 I'll give on example of a way where

          8  the law hasn't been exploited properly because this

          9  liberal construction language isn't there.  There

         10  are lots of victims of sexual harassment that I've

         11  seen over the years who I've had to tell, dozens

         12  whom I've had to tell, "Your case is going to be

         13  trivialized," because what judges do is put together

         14  the question of have you been harassed with the

         15  question of quite how much have you been harmed.

         16  Those are different questions.  One is whether

         17  you've been harassed and two is the question of

         18  damages and unless we have independent construction

         19  of the city Human Rights Law, we're not going to be

         20  able to do that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Craig, I'm

         22  sorry, I just want to give you your first time

         23  reminder.  I know you're covering a lot of ground on

         24  an important piece of legislation.  Again, the

         25  written testimony goes in.  What we need to hear
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          2  from you most is your response on the specific

          3  legislation to help guide us.

          4                 MR. GURIAN:  Well, let me speak for a

          5  moment about the marital status provisions.  It was

          6  very nice to hear that the commission believes that

          7  a couple who is turned down by a landlord because

          8  they're not married is entitled to relief.  The

          9  problem is they're apparently not aware of the State

         10  Court of Appeals law on this question which is

         11  bizarre and counterintuitive.  The State Court of

         12  Appeals has held that only individuals are

         13  protected.  So if you are being discriminated

         14  against because you as one person check the box

         15  single, then you have a claim, but if you're being

         16  discriminated against by a landlord because the

         17  landlord is saying I don't like the fact that you

         18  two people aren't married to one another, you're not

         19  protected.  I know it seems very strange, and if you

         20  want the citations I'll give them to you, but that's

         21  the state of play in State Court.

         22                 It wasn't the intention of the City

         23  Council to be that limiting and the change that's

         24  made is very straightforward.  I know it's been

         25  described as a complicated bill.  It says people are
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          2  protected against discrimination on the basis of

          3  marital status regardless of whether they're

          4  discriminated against as an individual in isolation

          5  or in relation to another person the way marital

          6  status discrimination frequently works.

          7                 One other specific revision has to do

          8  with retaliation and while the Council has already

          9  taken a shot at trying to expand this kind of

         10  coverage, courts haven't listened.  Courts will say

         11  that you have to have a lot of retaliation before

         12  it's a claim.  In fact if any of you were working at

         13  a job and had been getting excellent evaluations and

         14  then you complained about discrimination, and now

         15  all of a sudden you're not an excellent employee or

         16  an outstanding employee, your meets requirements.

         17  It maybe needs improvement a little bit.  You

         18  haven't lost your job yet, you're not out money but

         19  what you are out is the chance of having a good

         20  career at your current place or elsewhere as well.

         21  This question of damages versus underlying harm is

         22  separated out in 439.

         23                 I'm just going to take a second to

         24  talk about the thoroughness question.  One of the

         25  things that was mentioned earlier is it's very
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          2  difficult to know what a thorough investigation is.

          3  That an agency that's charged with investigating the

          4  law wouldn't want the law to require thorough

          5  investigations is very telling.  If you were to look

          6  at the report that we put out on what the city

          7  commission did this last year, you'll understand why

          8  they don't have that requirement, because they don't

          9  for the most part conduct such investigations.

         10                 But there's another issue that

         11  relates to substantial equivalence.  Mr. Chairman,

         12  you said at the outset of our long meeting today

         13  that we all agreed on the principle that everything

         14  else being equal, it would be good for the city to

         15  get money from the feds in connection with the

         16  housing discrimination investigations.  Absolutely.

         17  And it was good to hear that the administration is

         18  abandoning its attempt to cut back on existing

         19  coverage.  But if they look at the HUD regulations

         20  that govern substantial equivalence, there are a

         21  series of requirements that an agency has to meet.

         22  One of those requirements is that its investigations

         23  be comprehensive and thorough.  So even aside from

         24  the fact that investigations should be comprehensive

         25  and thorough, the city's not going to be getting any
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          2  money if it doesn't go forward in that way.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Craig, again

          4  this is very valuable, but now I do want to ask you

          5  to summarize and wrap up because we do have a number

          6  of folks ahead.  Thank you.

          7                 MR. GURIAN:  Very good, I will.  What

          8  I'd like to do on this substantial equivalent's

          9  question, and I know we have dumped a bunch of

         10  materials on you, is that we have done a proposed

         11  substitute for 417.  That substitute would yield

         12  substantial equivalents, would not cut back on

         13  existing rights under the law -- yeah, that was --

         14  and the question that I would be interested to ask

         15  the administration is how does this not do the job?

         16  I urge you to take a look at the substitute.

         17                 One final thing, Mr. Chairman and

         18  members of the committee, there are so many areas in

         19  city government where your hands are tied, whether

         20  it's relying on getting money from the state or

         21  federal government, whether it's having to go hat in

         22  hand to the state to get permission to raise

         23  revenue.  Not your favorite thing but sometimes you

         24  have to do it in areas of core concern to the city.

         25  Rent regulation.  Our hands are tied in a
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          2  significant way.  Anti discrimination law is one

          3  area that is of core concern where you, the

          4  government of the city, have free reign.  It's a big

          5  responsibility, it's a big opportunity, and I really

          6  urge further consideration of 439 because it could

          7  really make rights real for people.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  A very well-

          9  reasoned case and I appreciate particularly your

         10  highlighting the dangers of relying upon state and

         11  federal law and State and Federal Court decisions in

         12  what I might call a worsening political climate in

         13  our country.  I appreciate that very much.

         14                 Mr. Eisenberg.

         15                 MR. EISENBERG:  Thank you, Chair.

         16  Thank you, members of the committee.  Thank you,

         17  Councilwoman Brewer for sponsoring this legislation.

         18    My name is Herbert Eisenberg from the firm of

         19  Eisenberg & Schnell.  I am the President of the New

         20  York Chapter of the National Employment Lawyers

         21  Association.  We are a group in New York of about

         22  300 plaintiffs' employment lawyers representing

         23  individuals in employment disputes with their

         24  employers.  It is a group of 3,000 lawyers

         25  nationally.
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          2                 I heard the city commission

          3  representative speak and I often speak about how New

          4  York City has the strongest and broadest anti-

          5  discrimination law in the country.  It is

          6  unfortunate that that law has not been interpreted

          7  with the breadth and scope that the City Council had

          8  intended it to be read.  It is imperative that the

          9  Council reiterate that which was written into the

         10  law as it was initially enacted.  If you look at the

         11  legislative history it is clear it is a broad and

         12  broadly encompassing statute that is meant to be

         13  read liberally.  It is not asking anything to

         14  reiterate that other than to inform the courts that

         15  that is the intention of the City Council.

         16                 With regard to specific provisions of

         17  Intro. 439, in 1991 the Federal Congress enacted

         18  something called the Civil Rights Act of 1991.  That

         19  was enacted because the Supreme Court of the United

         20  States limited the breadth and scope of federal

         21  anti- discrimination statutes and the Congress

         22  thought those limitations were wrongly decided. What

         23  439 does is it attempts to again correct those same

         24  limitations that were promulgated by the courts that

         25  were not meant to be read into the statute with
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          2  regard to the anti- retaliation provisions.  It is

          3  clear retaliation is illegal.  There is no need to

          4  demonstrate that you were really retaliated against

          5  in order to have a claim of retaliation.  There's no

          6  need to show economic harm, to show that you were

          7  really retaliated against.

          8                 We see people in our office on a

          9  daily basis who have claims of both discrimination

         10  and retaliation with precious little I can do for

         11  them given the state of the law as it now stands.

         12  City law is something that I do have and it is

         13  imperative that I have the opportunity to advocate

         14  on behalf of my clients using the city law as it was

         15  intended to be utilized.

         16                 With regard to catalyst cases and

         17  attorney's fees on those cases, there are countless

         18  landmark cases that have been litigated through the

         19  courts in this city and nationally.  The Supreme

         20  Court in its infinite wisdom has determined that if

         21  those cases get resolved prior to a judicial

         22  determination, attorney's fees are unavailable to

         23  those bringing those suits.  There is clearly going

         24  to be a chill on those who -- those advocacy

         25  organizations and individual lawyers bringing
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          2  lawsuits to effectuate policy changes both in the

          3  private sector and in the public sector, and those

          4  changes are changes that have proven to be

          5  victorious where illegality has been shown and

          6  attorney's fees is one of the things that has moved

          7  those cases to resolution.

          8                 There is no reason to suggest that

          9  this is a attorney fee provision.  This is a

         10  provision to get policies to be in line with the

         11  law.  Right now it is in the interest of an employer

         12  or a city agency to stall, stall, stall and in the

         13  last moment agree to resolve the dispute and then

         14  not have to pay attorney's fees because there's been

         15  no judicial inprimator on that resolution.

         16                 With regard to the city commission

         17  and the agency's enforcement efforts, investigation

         18  is imperative. It's obvious to me.  The testimony

         19  this morning suggested that they had no problem with

         20  clarity.  What we are seeking in Intro. 439 is

         21  exactly that, clarity.  We want to make certain that

         22  everybody knows what New York City law is.  If we

         23  are proud of New York City law being the most

         24  expansive and encompassing anti- discrimination

         25  provision in the country, let it say that, because
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          2  people aren't reading it that way and it is

          3  imperative that it be read accordingly.

          4                 With regard to civil penalties, I

          5  need not reiterate what Mr. Gurian just stated and

          6  I, again, would refer to his comments for what I

          7  would like to add.  I'd be more than happy to take

          8  any questions.  Thank you for your time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you very

         10  much. I'd like to see if, starting with Gale Brewer,

         11  if anyone has questions or comments.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Very quickly.

         13    First of all, thank you both for your hard work on

         14  this bill.  It has been a long struggle and I

         15  appreciate all the detail that you have put into it.

         16                 One question I had was is there any

         17  other comment, particularly from you, Mr. Gurian,

         18  that you would like to respond to that was made by

         19  the administration this morning?

         20                 MR. GURIAN:  Thank you, Council

         21  Member Brewer, and thank you for sponsoring this

         22  bill.

         23                 There was another very specific

         24  misstatement in the testimony this morning.  You

         25  heard Mr. Mulqueen say, Deputy Commissioner Mulqueen
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          2  say that he's never heard of a civil penalty that

          3  was awarded more than $50,000.  Well, there's a

          4  reason for that.  The city commission, even though

          5  it's intended in the law to be available in all

          6  cases, just never negotiates for civil penalties,

          7  civil penalties that would go to the city's coffers

          8  at the same time they're creating a deterrent

          9  against discrimination.  The problem is in a city of

         10  this size, with firms the size that they are, the

         11  caps now which are $50,000 without showing any

         12  maliciousness or $100,000 aren't enough and there's

         13  a specific case.

         14                 This was a brutal case of

         15  discrimination on the basis of AIDS.  And the case

         16  was a number of years ago brought to the commission

         17  and the commission came out with a penalty of

         18  $75,000.  It went through the court system.  The

         19  Appellate Division First Department agreed that the

         20  law was a strong law, that the conduct was

         21  atrocious, but it cut the penalty to $25,000, a bare

         22  slap on the wrist, because the particular landlord

         23  was not Lefrak or Trump.  You have to, when you're

         24  dealing with civil penalties or punitive damages,

         25  make the penalty fit the crime.
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          2                 So if, for example, and I know this

          3  is a concern of Council Member Stewart, if it's in

          4  fact a very small landlord it doesn't take that much

          5  to make it hurt.

          6  But if it's a large landlord, a small penalty is not

          7  going to be any kind of deterrent at all.  Intro.

          8  439 does not insist that a single penalty, a single

          9  penny be in any particular civil penalty.  The

         10  minimum is zero, but it just raises the caps to give

         11  the agency more room.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.  I

         13  appreciate that very much.  Is there something else

         14  you wanted to say?

         15                 MR. GURIAN:  I was just going to say

         16  one thing that this committee could do and that we

         17  urge you to do, and this is contained in the last

         18  page of the report that we've now circulated to you,

         19  is that there are a series of indicators that are

         20  not tracked by the city commission that really deal

         21  with performance, not case processing the way they

         22  talk about it on their website, but what are they

         23  doing to prevent and remedy discrimination.  How

         24  many tests for discrimination do they conduct.  What

         25  kind of penalties they get.  I'm not going to go
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          2  through the whole series. You can't force them to

          3  put it into the Mayor's management report, but I

          4  would ask you all to, in your oversight function,

          5  request this kind of information regularly so you

          6  find out more than how many cases they currently

          7  have.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Council Member

         11  Quinn.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I want to

         13  thank you for all your work on this and for your

         14  testimony.  I just want to kind of add, the comments

         15  that were made about the city falling back to the

         16  state and federal government, I just think it's

         17  interesting to note there's a little bit of a trend

         18  in that with this administration.  When we had a

         19  hearing on the Access Without Fear Bill a number of

         20  months ago before Mayor Bloomberg signed the

         21  executive order, the administration came to us and

         22  said, "We don't need this bill because federal law

         23  takes care of everything."  I pointed out on behalf

         24  of the LGBT community I felt wildly uncomfortable

         25  with relying on the federal law or federal
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          2  government to protect me.

          3                 You know, at the Dignity For All

          4  Students Act hearing we were again told this was

          5  really a state issue and we needed to go by state

          6  law.  So maybe three times isn't a trend, but

          7  there's certainly something happening here as it

          8  relates to this administration feeling like issues

          9  of human rights and how people interact with each

         10  other and treat each other is not in their

         11  jurisdiction or not their -- one could take from

         12  that, not their priority, and I think we need to be

         13  vigilant in watching when this might be happening in

         14  other ways that are not quite as obvious as the

         15  testimony this morning.

         16                 MR. GURIAN:  The one thing that we

         17  can know about is that if you took a survey of

         18  discrimination defendants and their attorneys, what

         19  every single one of them would do is rub their hands

         20  together and say, "Yes, that's right, let's make

         21  sure that city law falls back to state and federal

         22  law because in many circumstances we'll be off the

         23  hook."  This Council shouldn't go along with that.

         24                 MR. EISENBERG:  I just agree, there's

         25  nothing more to add.  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

          3  both very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you very

          5  much for your testimony and again thank you, Council

          6  Member Brewer, for all you've done on this

          7  legislation.

          8                 We're now going to turn to, and again

          9  I apologize that so many people have been kept

         10  waiting. Unfortunately we had a lot of work to do

         11  today.  We're going to turn to 417 and we have

         12  several advocates from the community.  I think I'll

         13  call everyone up together. Alexander Wood of the

         14  Disabilities Network of New York City, Dennis Boyd,

         15  John Herrion and Jean Ryan.

         16                 While everyone's coming up, and we

         17  apologize, we'll move this piece along quickly.  I

         18  do want to ask, since there's yet another piece of

         19  legislation, there's one last panel on another piece

         20  of legislation next, I do want to ask everyone who's

         21  testifying to recognize we'll have any written

         22  testimony in the record, so we ask for your summary

         23  of your testimony.  I will also state the obvious, I

         24  think we had an important -- let's get everyone

         25  situated here for a moment -- okay, thank you.
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          2                 I just want to state the obvious

          3  which I think we had a victory today in the fact

          4  that the advocacy that everyone here has done led

          5  the administration to stand back from the

          6  legislation it had originally introduced.  I want to

          7  thank you for the work you've done.  This is one of

          8  those unfortunately somewhat rare moments in

          9  government where very good advocacy actually led to

         10  immediate action. I think now we all need to work

         11  together to make sure whatever the administration

         12  comes back with is appropriate.

         13                 Again, we look forward to your

         14  testimony.  I do want to beseech you and beg and

         15  plead to just do a verbal summary of the written

         16  testimony, especially in light of the

         17  administration's action.  We will have all the

         18  written testimony in the record.  Who would like to

         19  begin?

         20                 Okay.  Good morning or good

         21  afternoon.  My name is Alexander Wood.  I'm

         22  Executive Director of the Disabilities Network of

         23  New York City.  Basically since you have the written

         24  testimony, I won't go over it all, except to say

         25  that although we've heard from Deputy Commissioner
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          2  Mulqueen this morning that the city Commission on

          3  Human Rights will revisit those sections of the

          4  proposed Intro. 417 that damage people with

          5  disabilities.  As you just stated, we just cannot

          6  become complacent and believe that we've done an

          7  early victory.  We ask that the Council carefully

          8  review the proposed substitute 417 with the

          9  community and its legal counsels.  That's about all

         10  I have to say.  Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  We're going to

         12  do whatever you say because you win the award for

         13  the most pithy testimony in the history of this

         14  committee.  He gets a free piece of legislation.

         15  Yes, and Liz Claiborne clothing. It's like we're

         16  going to give out door prizes, please.

         17                 MS. RYAN:  Hi, I'm Jean Ryan.  I'm a

         18  board member of Disabled In Action.  We have people

         19  with all kinds of disabilities throughout the five

         20  boroughs.  One of our members who had to leave a

         21  little while ago to go to another meeting, Frieda

         22  Zames, was going to testify that she's in a

         23  particular situation which many people with

         24  disabilities aware, whether they've been disabled

         25  since their young life or became disabled in later
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          2  life, that you might be in an apartment which is

          3  inaccessible and then when you become too disabled

          4  to get in and out of it or to get into the bathroom,

          5  this is a particular problem.  The burden of

          6  changing the apartment should not be completely on

          7  the disabled person like 417 would require.  It's a

          8  lot harder for somebody to hire a contractor and

          9  change their bathroom than it is for a landlord to

         10  do that, plus, many people with disabilities are on

         11  a fixed income and have a very low income.  So we

         12  have to consider that people become disabled in

         13  later life or even, whatever, and they're living in

         14  an inaccessible apartment and that is a huge

         15  problem.

         16                 Otherwise, we really want 417 to be

         17  changed so that people with disabilities will not

         18  lose the rights that they already have.  If nothing

         19  else, they should be strengthened.

         20                 Our members have had a lot of

         21  problems with the Human Rights Commission.  We have

         22  made complaints and they have been summarily

         23  dismissed after a period of time. They have not been

         24  thoroughly investigated.  We feel that in many cases

         25  the Human Rights Commission does not represent our
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          2  interests.  That's all I have to say.

          3                 MR. HERRION:  Thank you for having me

          4  here today.  My name is John Herrion.  I'm an

          5  attorney with the Eastern Paralyzed Veterans

          6  Association.  The Eastern Paralyzed Veterans

          7  Association is dedicated to enhancing the lives of

          8  veterans and other persons with spinal cord

          9  disabilities through advocating for civil rights and

         10  independence.

         11                 The Eastern Paralyzed Veterans

         12  Association has successfully represented a number of

         13  veterans and other persons with disabilities before

         14  the New York City Human Rights Commission.  The

         15  majority of these cases involve housing

         16  discrimination against persons with disabilities.

         17  We've worked with the commission to distinguish New

         18  York City Human Rights Law as the strongest in the

         19  country with respect to access to housing for

         20  persons with disabilities.

         21                 Presently the New York City Human

         22  Rights Law obligates housing providers to pay and

         23  provide for reasonable modifications that permit

         24  persons with disabilities to use and enjoy their

         25  entire home.  New York City provides stronger
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          2  protections for persons with disabilities by

          3  distinguishing its law from the federal and state

          4  laws that place the obligation on the person with

          5  the disability to pay for modifications.

          6                 Both Intro. 417 and 439 were

          7  introduced to amend the city's Human Rights Law.  I

          8  am here to testify in support of Intro. 439 as the

          9  bill that should be passed to strengthen and enhance

         10  the rights of persons with disabilities under the

         11  present law and to oppose Intro. 417 which would

         12  needlessly diminish those rights.

         13                 Intro. 439 leaves the substantive

         14  provisions that establish the rights of persons with

         15  disabilities intact and ensures that the

         16  distinguished New York City Human Rights case law

         17  will remain strong precedent to protect persons with

         18  disabilities, whether it be in the context of

         19  housing or employment.

         20                 I, too, was glad to hear that the

         21  administration has changed or has withdrawn its

         22  support of Intro. 417 and I would like to note that

         23  we have enjoyed a successful working relationship

         24  with the New York City Human Rights Commission and

         25  we want to continue to rely upon that relationship
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          2  and the strongest civil rights protections offered

          3  for persons with disabilities in this country.  As

          4  such, we fully support and endorse the commission's

          5  efforts to obtain substantial equivalency so that

          6  the commission will be qualified to receive federal

          7  money to investigate and prosecute housing

          8  discrimination cases.  However, legislation designed

          9  to obtain substantial equivalency for the commission

         10  should not roll back civil rights protections for

         11  New York City residents but rather should focus on

         12  ensure that landlords be obligated to do that which

         13  is reasonable to provide persons with disabilities

         14  access to and use of their entire home.  We believe

         15  that Intro. 439 effectively accomplishes that

         16  purpose.  Thank you very much.

         17                 MR. BOYD:  Thank you, Chairman

         18  DeBlasio.  My name is Dennis Boyd.  I'm a senior

         19  staff attorney at the Disability Law Center of New

         20  York Lawyers for the Public Interest.

         21                 I could almost just say ditto and

         22  support Alex for the award of clothing.

         23                 Our organization has been doing

         24  extensive disability practice since 1981 and we

         25  engage in litigation, education, employment
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          2  training, government advocacy and a variety of other

          3  advocacy efforts around disability rights law.

          4  While we have less of a practice before the city

          5  Human Rights Commission, we're extremely concerned

          6  about the way in which the protections of the Human

          7  Rights Law have been interpreted.

          8                 I wanted to actually talk a little

          9  bit about the two other provisions, but I think in

         10  the interest of time I'll simply say that I think

         11  the idea of there being a mandate that there be

         12  thorough investigations and an explanation of what

         13  that entails is important, as Craig Gurian said, not

         14  only in terms of achieving substantial equivalents

         15  but also in terms of ensuring the rights of

         16  individuals who bring claims before the commission

         17  can be vindicated.  I think there are real concerns

         18  that his organization and others have brought out

         19  and that I see on a relatively regular basis about

         20  the ways in which there's rather summary treatment

         21  of a lot of individual, unrepresented claims that go

         22  before the commission.

         23                 I think it's also important that the

         24  contingency -- that the Buckhannon decision of the

         25  Supreme Court be essentially excluded from the
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          2  standard that would apply for attorney's fees under

          3  New York City Human Rights Law not only because --

          4  for the reasons that have previously been mentioned,

          5  but there are an awful lot of very poor claimants

          6  who can't afford counsel, can't afford to pay

          7  counsel on a per diem or a contingent basis, can't

          8  find counsel to represent them on what represent

          9  very serious violations.  As previously mentioned,

         10  ensuring that there's no necessity for a court

         11  order, a court enforceable order in order to be able

         12  to recover legal fees is extremely important because

         13  it ensures the discriminators can't evade costs

         14  incurred by a claimant merely by providing a

         15  voluntary settlement at the 11th hour.  I think that

         16  and a number of the other provisions that are in the

         17  proposed 353 and 439 are very important provisions.

         18                 Let me just, with regard to 417, say

         19  that I am also extremely happy to hear that the

         20  administration is rethinking their coverage of their

         21  idea about trying to undermine the coverage and

         22  costs of interior retrofits that are extremely

         23  unfairly -- it would be extremely unfair to post and

         24  foist them upon individuals with disabilities who

         25  obviously have relatively low incomes relative to
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          2  their landlords and certainly common and statutory

          3  law require that habitable premises be provided and

          4  that premises be usable for the purposes intended.

          5  I think that those obligations really should be

          6  reiterated in the Human Rights Law and not

          7  undermined.

          8                 One of the things that hasn't been

          9  pointed out before that I wanted to point out is

         10  that one of the proposals that the Intro. 417

         11  suggested was that with regard to the accessibility

         12  requirements of 417 and of the city Human Rights

         13  Law, it suggested the adoption of the Fair Housing

         14  Act design and construction requirements for new

         15  covered multiple dwellings.  I think that that,

         16  while it's good probably to have a specific

         17  individual and personal cause of action for

         18  violations of architectural standards, that the

         19  reliance on the Fair Housing Act as the standard

         20  would be a mistake primarily because it's the

         21  weakest of all of the federal laws.  I think if

         22  you're going to have that kind of reference you

         23  really have to include the uniform federal

         24  accessibility standards and ADAG and the American

         25  National Standards Institute requirements but also
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          2  the requirements of the city building code which in

          3  many regards are much more stringent as well.

          4                 I think that it sort of still rests

          5  on all of us to ensure that whatever proposal the

          6  administration does come up with does not in any way

          7  undermine the important protections that occur and

          8  exist under the law.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you.  I

         10  want to borrow from Alexander, I think I want to say

         11  no complacence, that you have won a victory.  You

         12  have won a tactical victory, and I think it's

         13  actually the first time I've ever seen the

         14  administration before this committee pull back its

         15  own legislation, so that's a great thing.          We

         16  have a lot more work to do.  The whole committee

         17  will participate with you to ensure if and when

         18  something else comes forward it resolves the

         19  questions everyone's raised.  Jackie Sherman, as our

         20  counsel, will be the point person and we want to

         21  have a very, very close communication as this is

         22  playing out.  I think, bluntly, when you start from

         23  this victory today it's very likely that we'll be

         24  able to keep the spotlight shining on the specifics

         25  of whatever else comes forward.  So thank you for
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          2  your excellent work.  Thank you very much for your

          3  testimony.

          4                 Our last witness who definitely gets

          5  a series of gifts from Liz Claiborne for his

          6  excellent patience.  We need to come out with like a

          7  gift certificate from the City Council when people

          8  wait this long.  Tom Smith, step forward.  Wait,

          9  there's another -- there's -- oh, I'm sorry, there's

         10  one more -- Tom, on this -- no, no, no, do your

         11  thing.  On 353, and there's one other person on

         12  another item.

         13                 Tom Smith, thank you for your

         14  patience. Thank you for your leadership on Intro.

         15  353.  Tell it like it is.

         16                 MR. SMITH:  I'd like to thank the

         17  Council today.  I'd like to thank the Chair Bill

         18  DeBlasio, Alan Gerson for being the prime sponsor

         19  and former Councilwoman Catherine Fried, who's

         20  actually supposed to come today to testify in favor

         21  of this bill but she's home sick and will be sending

         22  testimony in.

         23                 My name is Tom Smith and I'm the

         24  President of the Stonewall Democratic Club and a

         25  former spokesperson for the Coalition for Lesbian
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          2  and Gay Rights, which fought for the inclusion of

          3  lesbian and gay rights into the Human Rights Law

          4  that passed in 1986.

          5                 Andy Homm (phonetic), who's also a

          6  former spokesperson and is known to many people here

          7  as a reporter today, was also supposed to be

          8  testifying.  He was called away to a job and could

          9  not come.  He will be sending in written testimony.

         10  I'd like to point out that's the first time that

         11  Andy Homm has testified in favor of anything since

         12  1986.

         13                 I come here today to speak in favor

         14  of Intro. 353, the Human Rights Posting Law, that

         15  would mandate the posting of the New York City Human

         16  Rights Law in every place of employment, housing,

         17  public accommodation, credit, banking, real estate,

         18  et cetera.

         19                 I'd like to show you this model that

         20  was actually mocked up in 1994 when the original

         21  legislation was introduced.  You can see that it's

         22  in English, Spanish and Chinese.  If it looks a

         23  little familiar, I had asked the artist to use the

         24  sign you see in the restaurants about choking as the

         25  model for this.  Now, I also find it an unusual

                                                            137

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  comment today about the commission talking about not

          3  wanting to include language because of the cost of

          4  it. Today with computers and digital cameras and so

          5  forth, this can be modified in five minutes per

          6  different language. It's not hard at all.  It's

          7  perhaps the way that they're currently thinking.

          8  Maybe they think we're using the Guttenberg press

          9  still.  But, anyway.

         10                 I grew up in Staten Island in the

         11   '60s and '70s.  When I grew up there we didn't talk

         12  about human rights or civil rights much, you know.

         13  That happened down south.  It was happening in

         14  Washington with the march on Washington and so

         15  forth, except that if you looked at the local paper,

         16  which was the Sentinel and Advance (phonetic), you'd

         17  see that at least once a month or every couple of

         18  months there'd be a house burning down and a black

         19  couple or Latino couple was going to move into it

         20  and no one was hurt but the house burnt down before

         21  they were able to move into it.  Actually, one of my

         22  co- workers happened to be one of those people.  She

         23  spoke to me about that last year.  It was a painful

         24  time for her to talk about.

         25                 I'd like to think that those days are

                                                            138

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  over except that you still see that occasionally in

          3  the papers. You don't see and didn't see sometimes

          4  when the gay man who bought the house was going to

          5  move in.  You don't read about that.  You still read

          6  occasionally or see occasionally about swastikas or

          7  names, graffiti, on doorways, on places of worship.

          8  I bet you that the people who are violated don't

          9  know that bias related violence and harassment has

         10  been part of the Human Rights Law of New York City

         11  since 1994.  A lot of people don't know it because

         12  the commission makes it a very strong fact to try to

         13  turn those people away.  The reason that that's so

         14  important is that under the New York City law you

         15  don't need to prove criminal intent.  A lot of times

         16  these things, under state law, are sort of dismissed

         17  unless you can prove criminal intent or they've

         18  negotiated at the DA's office, and the person who

         19  has been violated believes that they don't have any

         20  recourse.

         21                 If you stop the person on the street

         22  and ask them what their rights are, they might tell

         23  you what their rights are based upon the federal

         24  standards.  They might even, if they're well-

         25  educated, tell you about the state law.  There are
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          2  very few people, even very well- read and educated

          3  people who can tell you that this Council included

          4  transgender people just earlier this year.  I thank

          5  you, by the way, we do have transgender people as

          6  part of the Stonewall Democratic Club and on our

          7  board.

          8                 Isn't it better to let places of

          9  employment, housing and public accommodation know

         10  what their responsible for instead of waiting until

         11  they've actually violated the law?  Isn't it better

         12  that everyone knows what is their rights and their

         13  obligations?

         14                 As a good friend of mine, Eleanor

         15  Cooper, who unfortunately is in a nursing home these

         16  days because she's wheelchair bound and not able to

         17  be with us, used to say we fight for these rights

         18  and protections for those of us that are unable to

         19  fight for themselves.  People with a lot of money

         20  and are strong can always find ways to fight for

         21  themselves.  We fight for the poor and broken and

         22  for those who are easily picked on and easy targets

         23  for those who would do them harm.

         24                 I urge you to pass Intro. 353.  I'd

         25  like to see it as common as the signs we see in the
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          2  restaurants for the Heimlich maneuver.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you very

          4  much, Tom, and thank you for all you've done to help

          5  this legislation move forward.

          6                 I think we made one mistake in our

          7  ordering of our witnesses, I apologize.  Edith

          8  Prentiss wanted to speak on 417.  So, welcome.

          9                 MS. PRENTISS:  I can reiterate Jean's

         10  and everyone else's testimony that says basically

         11  human rights doesn't make it easy to get there.

         12  Look at their website. They have a lovely

         13  description about where to find them. There's not a

         14  single bus listed.  I sent them a comment and said,

         15  you know, you don't list buses, and the person was

         16  saying as a wheelchair individual this was a

         17  problem.  I got an e- mail back saying but you know

         18  they reopened Cortland. I e- mailed back saying it's

         19  not wheelchair accessible.  I've never heard from

         20  them again.

         21                 Just look at their building to get a

         22  sense of their philosophy and their orientation.

         23  It's a building that has two doors that are usually

         24  locked surrounding rotating doors.  You have to

         25  request, you have to press a bell for someone to get
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          2  up, walk over and open the door. When you complain

          3  about it, they go, well, you know, there's wind.

          4  Okay.  Then when you get upstairs it's very funny

          5  because you have to use the phone to call them.

          6  Unfortunately, the phone is mounted way up there on

          7  the wall which I couldn't even get the receiver off

          8  much less press the phone number for them.  I think

          9  this is an indication of the headset of human

         10  rights.  They really don't see themselves as being

         11  there for the community that needs them and I would

         12  certainly hope that we would look at that.

         13                 Additionally, they're not the only

         14  people in New York City, let's be honest here.

         15  Quite a bit of New York City infrastructure, your

         16  own offices, et cetera, many are inaccessible.  How

         17  can we be assertive individuals participating in a

         18  democracy if we can't get to the table.

         19                 The issue about putting the law out

         20  there is very important.  This morning in my

         21  circuitous route from Washington Heights to here it

         22  took me going through Penn Station, interestingly

         23  enough.  Getting a cup of coffee in McDonald's, no

         24  napkins are accessible.  You say to them don't you

         25  realize that?  But we'll give you one.
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          2                 The orientation is totally unaware

          3  that there are civil right laws, that there are

          4  obligations that they as business people, that there

          5  are rights we have as citizens of this entity.

          6                 I would certainly hope that we don't

          7  say that the city's pulling back 417.  I think it's

          8  important to notice, at least on your website, it

          9  said on 417, by the request of the Mayor.  This is a

         10  mayor who is not friendly or open to disabled

         11  individuals.  He is opposing the expansion of EPIC

         12  and SCREE and the was supporting this.  I think it

         13  says something that yes, they backed down when there

         14  was such an uproar, but I do think we can expect to

         15  see this come back in another form.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you.  I

         17  appreciate your testimony and specifically I think

         18  we should take the information you just put forward

         19  about the reality of the Human Rights Commission

         20  headquarters and that's a very specific thing we can

         21  do to fix.  I will -- Jackie Sherman, my counsel,

         22  will get with the folks at Human Rights now, both

         23  about the front door and about the phone.  I mean,

         24  very good cases in point there of what we're trying

         25  to do.
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          2                 MS. PRENTISS:  It puts a bad face.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  To day the

          4  least.

          5                 MS. PRENTISS:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:  Thank you.

          7  Thank you, everyone, for your patience.  It's been a

          8  long day but we've covered a lot of ground and very

          9  much appreciate everyone being here.  This meeting

         10  of the General Welfare Committee is adjourned.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 1:20 p.m.)
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